
 

GRAND RAPIDS PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

REGULAR WORK SESSION MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, April 26, 2022 

8:00 AM 

CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to due notice and call thereof, a Regular Work Session Meeting of the Grand 

Rapids Public Utilities Commission will be held on Tuesday, April 26, 2022 at 8:00 AM in the conference 

room of the Public Works/Public Utilities Service Center at 500 SE 4th Street, Grand Rapids, Minnesota. 

CALL OF ROLL: 

BUSINESS: 

1. Consider a motion to approve the verified claims for March and April 2022 in the amount 

$184,490.22. 

2. Review of City Multi-Family Unit Residential Water Rates 

3. Governance Overview – Financial Reporting & Annual Report 

4. Review Financial Reporting 

5. Review of draft financial planning and budget policy 

ADJOURNMENT: 

The next Regular Meeting of the Commission is scheduled for Wednesday, May 11, 2022 at 4:00 PM in 

the conference room of the Public Works/Public Utilities Service Center at 500 SE 4th Street. 

The next Regular Work Session is scheduled for Tuesday, May 24, 2022 at 8:00 AM in the conference 

room of the Public Works/Public Utilities Service Center at 500 SE 4th Street. 
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GRAND RAPIDS 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider a motion to approve the verified claims for March and April 

2022 in the amount $ 184,490.22. 

PREPARED BY: Jean Lane, Business Services Manager 

 

BACKGROUND: 

See attached check registers: $184,490.22 

 
Computer check register $ 184,490.22 

Manual check register $0 

Total $ 184,490.22 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Consider a motion to approve the verified claims for March & April 2022 in the amount of  

$ 184,490.22. 

 

Computer check register $184,490.22 

Manual check register $0 
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Grand Rapids Public Utilities

Accounts Payable

March/April 2022

(Meeting Date: 04/26/2022)

NAME AMOUNT NAME AMOUNT

A.G O'Brien 1,200.00 McMaster-Carr 2,836.72

Acheson 550.00 Minnesota Municipal Utilities 37.50

Altec Nueco 4,228.00 Minnesota Power 6,289.69

Aramark 497.65 Nextera 617.63

A.T. Group/Al Roth 940.00 Northwest Gas 632.29

Baker Tilly 18,310.00 Power Process 3,115.79

Border States 2,400.30 Public Utilities Commission 9,467.00

CarQuest 507.33 Railroad Management Company 3,366.07

Central McGowan 610.00 Rapids Welding 3,536.94

City of Grand Rapids 1,789.79 RCB Collections 393.72

Coles 399.55 Resco 41,191.41

Cooperative Response Center 1,864.35  RMB Environmental Lab 398.00

Dakota Supply Group 193.29 Sandstrom's 419.71

Davis Oil 2,482.36 Star Tribune 648.86

ERA 173.79 TNT 954.00

Ferguson 1,833.64 United Rentals 477.73

Figgins Truck & Trailer 2,144.24 Venator Chemicals 44,046.23

Frontier Energy 6,937.22 Viking Electric 6,662.48

Further 88.00 Waste Management 872.54

Gopher State One 32.40 Wesco 4,775.33

Grainger 1,381.45 WUSZ 460.00

Hach 112.03 Xerox 100.66

Innovative Office Solutions 649.80

Insurance Claim Settlement # GL114760 143.39

Itasca Computer Resources 1,008.00

Itasca County 1,910.79

Kaman 493.86 184,490.22
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GRAND RAPIDS 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM: Review of City Multi-Family Unit Residential Water Rates 

PREPARED BY: Jean Lane, Business Services Manager 

 

BACKGROUND: 

During the establishment of customer accounts for the two new apartment complexes it was 

noted by CSR team members the rates charged for a 38 unit building and a 48 unit building had 

not been previously approved by the GRPU Commission. 

Paula Hennemann, Lead CSR, working with CSR team members suggested to complete the rate 

table for City Multi-Family Unit Residential Water regardless if there was currently a housing 

complex with that specific number of units.  Approving this revised rate schedule will allow the 

CRS teams to better perform their roles. 

The calculation is the same regardless the number of units.  The rate charge is $5.20 times the 

number of units plus a flat fee of $3.47.  Customers have been billed correctly on their monthly 

utility bill as the mathematical calculation is not changing. 

Paula suggested to fill in all the unit values from 2 to 61 even though some unit rates have no 

customers.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Review the attached City Multi-Family Unit Residential Water Rate schedule for units 2 to 61 

and consider approving the revised rate table at the May 11, 2022 Commission Meeting. 
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Adopted: 12-15-2021
Effective/Billed After: 02-01-2022

Number
of Units

Unit
Charge

Customer
Charge

Total 
Customer
Charge

3.79 /1,000 gal. 4.78 /1,000 gal. 5.99 /1,000 gal. 9.57 /1,000 gal.
2 $5.20 $3.47 $13.87 - 8 9 16 17 60 > 61
3 $5.20 $3.47 $19.07 - 12 13 24 25 90 > 91
4 $5.20 $3.47 $24.27 - 16 17 32 33 120 > 121
5 $5.20 $3.47 $29.47 - 20 21 40 41 150 > 151
6 $5.20 $3.47 $34.67 - 24 25 48 49 180 > 181
7 $5.20 $3.47 $39.87 - 28 29 56 57 210 > 211
8 $5.20 $3.47 $45.07 - 32 33 64 65 240 > 241
9 $5.20 $3.47 $50.27 - 36 37 72 73 270 > 271
10 $5.20 $3.47 $55.47 - 40 41 80 81 300 > 301
12 $5.20 $3.47 $65.87 - 48 49 96 97 360 > 361
16 $5.20 $3.47 $86.67 - 64 65 128 129 480 > 481
18 $5.20 $3.47 $97.07 - 72 73 144 145 540 > 541
20 $5.20 $3.47 $107.47 - 80 81 160 161 600 > 601
22 $5.20 $3.47 $117.87 - 88 89 176 177 660 > 661
23 $5.20 $3.47 $123.07 - 92 93 184 185 690 > 691
24 $5.20 $3.47 $128.27 - 96 97 192 193 720 > 721
27 $5.20 $3.47 $143.87 - 108 109 216 217 810 > 811
29 $5.20 $3.47 $154.27 - 116 117 232 233 870 > 871
32 $5.20 $3.47 $169.87 - 128 129 256 257 960 > 961
35 $5.20 $3.47 $185.47 - 140 141 280 281 1,050 > 1,051
37 $5.20 $3.47 $195.87 - 148 149 296 297 1,110 > 1,111
40 $5.20 $3.47 $211.47 - 160 161 320 321 1,200 > 1,201
41 $5.20 $3.47 $216.67 - 164 165 328 329 1,230 > 1,231
42 $5.20 $3.47 $221.87 - 168 169 336 337 1,260 > 1,261
50 $5.20 $3.47 $263.47 - 200 201 400 401 1,500 > 1,501
54 $5.20 $3.47 $284.27 - 216 217 432 433 1,620 > 1,621
60 $5.20 $3.47 $315.47 - 240 241 480 481 1,800 > 1,801
61 $5.20 $3.47 $320.67 - 244 245 488 489 1,830 > 1,831

Revised:
Adopted 12-15-2021 Effective 02-01-2022
Last Revised:
Adopted 09-12-2018 Effective 10-01-2018

GRAND RAPIDS PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4

CITY MULTI-FAMILY UNIT RESIDENTIAL WATER RATES

Applicable within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Rapids:

Next 20,000 gallons $5.99 20 180 $119.80

$912.87

First 80,000 gallons $3.79 80 80 $303.20
Next 80,000 gallons $4.78 80 160 $382.40

Tier Rate (/1000) Gallons (/1000) Charges
Customer Charge (see above table) $107.47

Example: A 20 unit  apartment building using 180,00 gallons would calculate their water charge as follows:

Tier Gallons Cumulative

(first 4,000 gal) (next 4,000 gal) (next 22,000 gal) (over 30,000 gal)
Tier 1
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from to from to from to
2 $5.20 $3.47 $13.87 0 8 9 16 17 60 over 60

3 $5.20 $3.47 $19.07 0 12 13 24 25 90 over 90

4 $5.20 $3.47 $24.27 0 16 17 32 33 120 over 120

5 $5.20 $3.47 $29.47 0 20 21 40 41 150 over 150

6 $5.20 $3.47 $34.67 0 24 25 48 49 180 over 180

7 $5.20 $3.47 $39.87 0 28 29 56 57 210 over 210

8 $5.20 $3.47 $45.07 0 32 33 64 65 240 over 240

9 $5.20 $3.47 $50.27 0 36 37 72 73 270 over 270

10 $5.20 $3.47 $55.47 0 40 41 80 81 300 over 300

11 $5.20 $3.47 $60.67 0 44 45 88 89 330 over 330

12 $5.20 $3.47 $65.87 0 48 49 96 97 360 over 360

13 $5.20 $3.47 $71.07 0 52 53 104 105 390 over 390

14 $5.20 $3.47 $76.27 0 56 57 112 113 420 over 420

15 $5.20 $3.47 $81.47 0 60 61 120 121 450 over 450

16 $5.20 $3.47 $86.67 0 64 65 128 129 480 over 480

17 $5.20 $3.47 $91.87 0 68 69 136 137 510 over 510

18 $5.20 $3.47 $97.07 0 72 73 144 145 540 over 540

19 $5.20 $3.47 $102.27 0 76 77 152 153 570 over 570

20 $5.20 $3.47 $107.47 0 80 81 160 161 600 over 600

21 $5.20 $3.47 $112.67 0 84 85 168 169 630 over 630

22 $5.20 $3.47 $117.87 0 88 89 176 177 660 over 660

23 $5.20 $3.47 $123.07 0 92 93 184 185 690 over 690

24 $5.20 $3.47 $128.27 0 96 97 192 193 720 over 720

25 $5.20 $3.47 $133.47 0 100 101 200 201 750 over 750

26 $5.20 $3.47 $138.67 0 104 105 208 209 780 over 780

27 $5.20 $3.47 $143.87 0 108 109 216 217 810 over 810

28 $5.20 $3.47 $149.07 0 112 113 224 225 840 over 840

29 $5.20 $3.47 $154.27 0 116 117 232 233 870 over 870

30 $5.20 $3.47 $159.47 0 120 121 240 241 900 over 900

31 $5.20 $3.47 $164.67 0 124 125 248 249 930 over 930

32 $5.20 $3.47 $169.87 0 128 129 256 257 960 over 960

33 $5.20 $3.47 $175.07 0 132 133 264 265 990 over 990

34 $5.20 $3.47 $180.27 0 136 137 272 273 1,020 over 1,020

35 $5.20 $3.47 $185.47 0 140 141 280 281 1,050 over 1,050

36 $5.20 $3.47 $190.67 0 144 145 288 289 1,080 over 1,080

37 $5.20 $3.47 $195.87 0 148 149 296 297 1,110 over 1,110

38 $5.20 $3.47 $201.07 0 152 153 304 305 1,140 over 1,140

39 $5.20 $3.47 $206.27 0 156 157 312 313 1,170 over 1,170

40 $5.20 $3.47 $211.47 0 160 161 320 321 1,200 over 1,200

GRAND RAPIDS PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
CITY MULTI-FAMILY UNIT RESIDENTIAL WATER RATES

Tier 4
(over 30,000 gal)

Per # of Units

Tier 3
(next 22,000 gal)

Per # of Units

Tier 2
(next 4,000 gal)
Per # of Units

$3.79 / 1,000 gal. $ 4.78 / 1,000 gal. $5.99 / 1,000 gal. $9.57 / 1,000 gal.

Applicable within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Rapids:

Tier 1
(first 4,000 gal)
Per # of Units

Number
of Units

Unit
Charge

Customer
Charge

Total 
Customer
Charge
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GRAND RAPIDS PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
CITY MULTI-FAMILY UNIT RESIDENTIAL WATER RATES

Tier 4
(over 30,000 gal)

Per # of Units

Tier 3
(next 22,000 gal)

Per # of Units

Tier 2
(next 4,000 gal)
Per # of Units

$3.79 / 1,000 gal. $ 4.78 / 1,000 gal. $5.99 / 1,000 gal. $9.57 / 1,000 gal.

Applicable within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Rapids:

Tier 1
(first 4,000 gal)
Per # of Units

Number Unit Customer
Total 

Customer
41 $5.20 $3.47 $216.67 0 164 165 328 329 1,230 over 1,230

42 $5.20 $3.47 $221.87 0 168 169 336 337 1,260 over 1,260

43 $5.20 $3.47 $227.07 0 172 173 344 345 1,290 over 1,290

44 $5.20 $3.47 $232.27 0 176 177 352 353 1,320 over 1,320

45 $5.20 $3.47 $237.47 0 180 181 360 361 1,350 over 1,350

46 $5.20 $3.47 $242.67 0 184 185 368 368 1,380 over 1,380

47 $5.20 $3.47 $247.87 0 188 189 376 376 1,410 over 1,410

48 $5.20 $3.47 $253.07 0 192 193 384 384 1,440 over 1,440

49 $5.20 $3.47 $258.27 0 196 197 392 392 1,470 over 1,470

50 $5.20 $3.47 $263.47 0 200 201 400 401 1,500 over 1,500

51 $5.20 $3.47 $268.67 0 204 205 408 409 1,530 over 1,530

52 $5.20 $3.47 $273.87 0 208 209 416 417 1,560 over 1,560

53 $5.20 $3.47 $279.07 0 212 213 424 425 1,590 over 1,590

54 $5.20 $3.47 $284.27 0 216 217 432 433 1,620 over 1,620

55 $5.20 $3.47 $289.47 0 220 221 440 441 1,650 over 1,650

56 $5.20 $3.47 $294.67 0 224 225 448 449 1,680 over 1,680

57 $5.20 $3.47 $299.87 0 228 229 456 457 1,710 over 1,710

58 $5.20 $3.47 $305.07 0 232 233 464 465 1,740 over 1,740

59 $5.20 $3.47 $310.27 0 236 237 472 473 1,770 over 1,770

60 $5.20 $3.47 $315.47 0 240 241 480 481 1,800 over 1,800

61 $5.20 $3.47 $320.67 0 244 245 488 489 1,830 over 1,830

                                                                                                     

9/12/2018

Effective

2/1/2022
10/1/20189/12/2018

4/21/2022

Revised Adopted

12/15/202112/15/2021

$303.20

Next 80,000 gallons $4.78 80

Next 20,000 gallons $5.99 20 180 $119.80

$912.87

160 $382.40

Tier Rate (/1000) Gallons (/1000) Charges

Customer Charge 
(see above table)

$107.47

First 80,000 gallons $3.79 80 80

Example - A 20 unit  apartment building using 180,00 gallons would calculate their water charge as follows:
Tier Gallons Cumulative
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GRAND RAPIDS 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM: Governance Overview – Financial Reporting & Annual Report 

PREPARED BY: Julie Kennedy, General Manager 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Continuing from last month’s 2022 Governance Policies Review, Jean Lane will be reviewing 

with you at this work session some 2021 GRPU financial information along with a draft 

budgeting policy. As we begin to develop our new financial reporting structure for the 

Commission, I would like to start with the end in mind by sharing with you my goal of 

publishing a GRPU annual report starting in 2023. I have included a couple annual report 

examples from my colleagues that illustrate the style of report that I hope we can produce. As 

you review the financial information with Jean, please also keep this future goal in mind. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Review only.  
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A message from ... 

Mark Nibaur
General Manager

When we kicked off 2021, it was hard to believe 
we would be celebrating five years in our new 
building. We made a lot of commitments to our 
customers. This annual report is a report back 
to the community on how we followed through 
on those commitments. The savings that have 
been achieved, the synergies that have been 
created, and the connections we have made with 
each other and the community have exceeded 
our expectations. The closeness of being in one 
building that replaced seven buildings in three 
locations has allowed us to grow as a team and 
deliver on results. The board and staff at Austin 
Utilities are proud to provide this five-year report 
back to our community. 
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Austin Utilities 
Leadership Team
Our Leadership team has the right mix of skills and 
knowledge to continue pushing our organization 
forward in the ever changing utility environment.

Alex Bumgardner – Utility Operations Director

Mark Nibaur – General Manager

Dan Ulland – Employee Relations Director

Tom Tylutki – Electric Distribution Director

Austin Utilities 
2021 Board of 
Commissioners
Board leadership has changed over the last five years, but 
we continue to be served by a dedicated group of elected 
local citizens who represent the voice of our customers.
Front Row: 
Kristin Johnson – Term: 4/20/20–12/31/24
Jeanne Sheehan – Term: 9/2/03–12/31/22

Back Row: 

Tom Baudler – Term: 10/12/99–12/31/24
Steve Greenman – Term: 8/20/18–12/31/22
Jay Lutz – Term: 1/1/21–12/31/24

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 3

LEADERSHIP 
In 2013, the Austin Utilities board of 
commissioners challenged our staff to 
build a business case and seek public 
support of our new building needs before 
approving the construction.  After a 
multi-year campaign involving many 
layers of education and public outreach, 
the board approved the construction of 
one central facility that would replace 
seven buildings in three locations. 

2013 Board of Commissioners Geoff Baker, Jim Schroeder, Jeanne Sheehan, Tom Sherman, Tom Baudler
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Austin Utilities
NEW FACILITY TIMELINE

4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The decision to construct a new facility was not taken lightly. At an anticipated cost of almost $18 
million dollars, staff was thorough in detailing the need for a new building.  Increased efficiency was a 
major goal of the centralized building project. We made commitments to our customers about the many 
benefits this facility would provide.

In November 2013 a multilayer marketing plan was launched to gain public support for the construction 
of a new central facility. Many hours were put into educating the community in a variety of ways.   

  Customer Newsletter
  Video Campaign
  Community Leaders meetings

  Internal Education
  Website
  Direct Mailer
  Press Releases

DECEMBER 2013
Campaign launched

OCTOBER 2014
Board approves construction

APRIL 2015
Groundbreaking Ceremony

JULY 2016 
Building Opens

  Club and organization 
presentation

  Public Utility and 
Council meetings

$396,356 Processes 
& Equipment

$139,837 Insurance

$28,210 Utilities

$188,500 Fleet

$774,784 Labor

HARD COSTS

Total: $1,527,687

$52,685 Improved 
Communication

$91,841 Crew Staff 
Proximity

$101,433 Misc

$249,617 Technology 
Efficiencies

$15,090 Shift Changes

SOFT COSTS

Total: $510,666

2017—2021 
Hard Costs

Savings 
Breakdown

  Focus Groups
  Key Customer 

meetings

Austin Utilities exceeded promised savings of $2.5 million in ten years by identifying over $2 million 
in hard and soft cost savings in just five years.

NEW FACILITY SAVINGS

2017—2021 
Soft Costs

Savings 
Breakdown
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Building for the Future
  Replaces outgrown and outdated facilities
  Provides space for Austin Utilities staff and customer meetings that is lacking in our current facility

   RESULT
It is hard to put a value on what we have gained by having all staff in one location. We have opened 
up the building numerous times for public tours, and received many positive customer comments 
about the thought put into our building design. Tour participants gained a much better education and 
understanding of the services we provide and have seen a building that provides the space to meet 
needs now and into the future.

Improved Operation Efficiencies/Synergies
  Savings estimated at $2.5 million over 10 years
  Eliminates wasted staff time traveling to and from current multiple locations

   RESULT
We have been tracking savings from operational efficiencies over the past five years in the areas of 
processes and equipment, labor, fleet, insurance, and utilities. Overall, we have already seen over $2 
million dollars in savings as identified in the cost saving charts on page 4.

Improved Safety 
  Eliminates traffic and safety hazards associated with current location
  Fenced area will secure the new facility from security breaches

   RESULT
All utility vehicles are now housed in a central garage with traffic flowing safely in one direction leading to 
a road more suited for heavy vehicle traffic. The need to have our building and building resources securely 
inside fenced in property has become even more important as threats against critical infrastructure are on 
the rise.

Improve Service During Emergencies 
  Central Dispatch/Control Center in a hardened area improving crew response time
  Backup generation on-site to assure quick response during emergencies

   RESULT
Our system was put to test December 2021 when high winds caused a community-wide outage. 
Because our building is equipped with on-site backup generation and work areas are hardened to 
withstand F2 tornado winds, Austin Utilities was able to continue operations allowing us to dispatch 
and communicate with crews and restore service quickly during this emergency. Overall, our 
response times are some of the best in our industry.

Improve Customer Service
  Serve our customer with a “one stop shop” by providing all departments’ functions in one facility.
  Improved lobby space and customer interaction providing better privacy and areas to complete  

paperwork

   RESULT
Having all staff in one building has given us the synergy needed to streamline processes that benefit 
customers. Examples of improvements include work order flow, more online services, and extended 
hours to provide more access to customers. The improved lobby and workstation design have 
provided the privacy customers deserve when sharing sensitive information with us. 
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COMMUNITY 
CONNECTIONS 
As a community utility we had a vision of using our new facility 
to build community connections. We have had the pleasure of 
hosting many community organizations. We have also held many 
of our own successful community events. Most of these would 
not have been possible without the opportunity our new 
space provides.  

2018 United Way Campaign

2018 Kids Community Education Class

2019 Car Care Clinic

2017 Share the Heat Run

2021 Electric Vehicle Expo

Groups we’ve hosted
•  Austin Firefighter Training

•  Austin Public School Administration

•  City of Austin Leadership

•  Leadership Austin

•  Mower County CEO Program

•  Mower County Leadership

•  Red Cross Blood Drive 

•  SMMPA Economic Development Summit 

Events we’ve held
•  Annual Drive through Trick or 

Treat/Food Drive

•  Annual Rain Barrel Sale

•  Car Care Clinic

•  Chamber of Commerce Business 
After Hours

•  Electric Vehicle Expo and Touch                    
a Truck Event

•  Share the Heat Run/Walk

•  Winter Readiness Event

Over the past five years we 
have hosted building tours 
for hundreds of people.
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Austin Utilities employees 
have always run campaigns to 
support organizations meeting 
community needs.
Having ample sized common spaces within one 
building has allowed us to do more for these 
groups that are so important to us. Our support 
for the Austin community continues to grow.

Organizations we’ve supported 
•  United Way of Mower County

•  Salvation Army Programs
–  HeatShare
–  Food Drive
–  Angel Tree

•  Paint The Town Pink supporting The 
Hormel Institute cancer research.

•  Registered Monarch Waystation 
Butterfly Garden 

•  Purple Martin Housing

2021 Red Cross Blood Drive

2018 United Way Campaign

2021 Drive-through Trick or Treat and Food Drive

2021 Utility Training for Fire Fighters

2018 Winter Readiness

2017 B3 Student Building Tour

2021 Electric Vehicle Expo
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Administration – Mark Nibaur (General Manager) 
Sarah Douty

Accounting/Finance – Ann Christianson (Manager)
Joan Maxfield, Dana Steichen  

Customer Service – Melissa Swenson (Supervisor)
Dar Duholm, Michelle Orozco, Audra Smalley, Ashley Stadheim, Dave Thompson, 
Wendy Whalen, Kara Wollschlager / Retired in 2021: Beth Johannsen

Information Systems – Butch Goergen (Manager)
James Burke, Jonas Morehouse

Marketing and Energy Services – Kelly Lady (Manager)

Storeroom (Purchasing) – Pete Klingfus, Jamie Millam 
Retired in 2021: Jerry Stowell     

Employee Relations – Dan Ulland (Director) 
Retired in 2021: Kim Duncomb

Electric Distribution – Tom Tylutki (Director) 

Electric Department – Bill Bumgarner (Supervisor)
Pat Andera, Pat Donovan, Gilbert Ferguson, Jr., Mark Gerstner, Trevor Herfindahl, Jeff Martinson,                          
Kurt Regenscheid, Colin Roberts, Doug Rysavy, Dillon Sprague, Steve Tiegs, Tyler Underdahl, Garitt Wytaske

Utility Operations – Alex Bumgardner (Director)
Jenny Loucks / Retired in 2021: Todd Jorgenson

Engineering Services – Keven Maxa (Supervisor)
Derek Berndt, Brandon Schaefer, Curtis Webb, Craig Weis 

Gas & Water Construction – Jeff Majerus (Supervisor)
Matt Ball, Rob Cabeen, Garrett Gilster, Willie Granholm, Brian Gunderson, Wayne Guyette, Adam Heimer, 
Brandon Hemry, Matias Martin, John Maxfield, Wade Nelson, Justin Peterson, Hunter Yocom 
Retired in 2021: Larry Sunderman

Gas & Water Services – Rob Gleason (Supervisor)
Joe Bartholomew, Samantha Bekaert, Ryan Bell, Jason Cummings, Jessie Dumais, Marty Johnson, Dave Maloney, 
John Troupe, Scott Wangen / Retired in 2021: Gary Gabrielson

Utility Operations – Jess Dunlap (Supervisor)  
Steve Bissett, Mike Johnson, Jay Kohnke, Corey Kreutzbender, Duane McGonigle, Brad Sistek, 
Kevin Spinler, Dave White

8 | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

OUR EMPLOYEES...
Serving Customers Today and Every Day; 
Connections You Can Trust!
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BUILDING A TEAM 
to Serve a Community
Having all staff report to one central facility gives us the opportunity 
to see each other more routinely, work together more closely and 
build on the type of culture and work ethic that has earned Austin 
Utilities the BEST PLACES TO WORK IN SOUTHEAST MINNESOTA 
recognition four years in a row (2018- 2021). Austin Utilities also 
earned the American Public Power Association RP3 award for reliable 
public power. These recognitions had not been achieved prior to 
being in this building. In addition to these recognitions, Austin also 
earned the American Public Gas Association SOAR award for System 
Operational Achievement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 9

SAFETY CELEBRATIONS:
Staff celebrated a Zero Accident safety goal together 
by cooking lunch on-site. Manning the grill for the 
event are Adam Heimer, Jeff Martinson, Pat Donovan, 
Dillon Sprague, and Trevor Herfindahl.

ANNUAL STAFF APPRECIATION PICNIC:
The building provides space for all staff to gather. From all staff meetings in the Austin Mapleview 
conference room that holds 248 people to utilizing the breakroom and garage space for the 
Annual Staff Appreciation Picnic. 

ANNUAL PAINT THE TOWN PINK EMPLOYEE RAFFLE:
Employees have raised over $10,000 for PTTP by raffling 
items donated by each Department. The money supports the 
communitywide Paint the Town Pink fundraiser supporting 
cancer research at The Hormel Institute.

RETIREMENT GATHERINGS:
Employees have space to share good thoughts and memories with the retirement 
of long time staff members including Beth Johannsen who retired in 2021 after 20 
years of service.
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2021 FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS
The following graph depicts the percent 
of revenue spent for each major 
category of expense. Sixty-nine percent 
of revenues are spent on purchased 
power costs and natural gas purchases. 
Operating expenses are the next 
highest expense at 23%. Depreciation 
and Contributions in Lieu of Taxes make 
up 7% and our Operating Margin makes 
up the remaining 1%. 

A historical spike in February natural gas 
prices caused the 2021 average cost 
of gas to increase to $8.15 from the 
2020 average of $3.53, an increase of 
130.7%. Part of this increase was offset 
using $1.5 million in cash reserves 
resulting in a smaller operating margin 
than in past years. Our financial position 
still remains strong.

10 | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Operating costs were higher than previous years, and total assets increased with our improved 
infrastructure. As we look ahead to 2022, we will continue to diligently manage our costs in 
order to mitigate rate impacts to our customers.

 Revenues
$64.1 
 Million

Total Assets

Equity

Revenue

Operating & Fixed 
(Expenses)

Other Income 
(Expenses)

Margins

Audited financial statements are available on our website at www.austinutilities.com.

69% Purchased Power & 
Natural Gas Purchases

23% Operating Expenses

2.5% Contributions in 
Lieu of Taxes

4.5% Depreciation

1% Operating Margin

2020
$109.4 Million

$61.0 Million

$55.2 Million

($51.7) Million

($0.4) Million

$3.9 Million

2021
$112.3 Million

$61.3 Million

$64.1 Million

($63.4) Million

($0.4) Million

$0.3 Million
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Revenues
By Class
For Year Ending
Dec. 31, 2021

Revenues
By Source

For Year Ending
Dec. 31, 2021

30%
Commercial

36%
Residential

1%
Other

33%
Industrial

8%
Water

55%
Electric

1%
Other36%

Gas

2021 REVENUES 
BY CLASS AND SOURCE

Changing Rates
The central facility building construction was funded 
using a twenty-year tax exempt general obligation 
bond which resulted in an average 1-3% increase to 
residential and commercial customers.

In the past five years, gas rates have 
remained flat and electric rates have 

     DECREASED BY 0.85% 
as the cost saving benefits of one building 
in one location are achieved.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 11
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507-433-8886  •  talk2au@austinutilities.com
1908 14th Street NE • Austin, MN 55912

www.AustinUtilities.com

Saving money just got easier.
Track your usage and take the guesswork out of 
your bill with SmartHub.

Through detailed graphs, you’ll be able to monitor 
usage 24/7 and track your consumption, finding 
ways to reduce and save, all in the palm of your 
hand and online.

SMART MANAGEMENT.
SMART LIFE.
SMARTHUB.

SMART
USAGE
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Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Public Utilities Board of 
Rochester Public Utilities 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rochester Public Utilities, enterprise funds of the 
City of Rochester, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control over financial reporting relevant to the Rochester 
Public Utilities’ preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Rochester Public Utilities' internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Rochester Public Utilities as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities.
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Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Rochester Public Utilities enterprise fund 
and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Rochester, Minnesota, as 
of December 31, 2020 and the respective changes in financial position, or cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required 
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements as a whole. The 
Operating and Financial Statistics as identified in the table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we 
express no opinion or provide any assurance on it.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated March 31, 2021 on our 
consideration of Rochester Public Utilities’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Rochester Public Utilities’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Rochester 
Public Utilities' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

 
Madison, Wisconsin 
March 31, 2021 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
(unaudited)

The following discussion and analysis of the financial results of  
Rochester Public Utilities (RPU or the Utility) provides an overview of the  

Utility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2020  
compared to the year ended December 31, 2019.  

This discussion is designed to be used in conjunction with the  
financial statements and notes, which follow this section.

Rochester Public Utilities is a municipal utility governed by a five-member board  
under the authority of the Home Rule Charter. Rochester Public Utilities  

is comprised of two separate utilities, the Electric Utility and the Water Utility.

Overview of the Financial Statements
Financial Statements

The Statements of Net Position present each Utility’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between them reported as net 
position. The Statement of Net Position provides information about the nature and amount of 
investments in resources (assets), deferred outflows of resources, the obligations to creditors 
(liabilities), and deferred inflows of resources. Net position increases when revenues exceed 
expenses. The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report the 
revenues and expenses during the periods indicated. The Statements of Cash Flows provide 
information about each Utility’s cash receipts and payments from operations, as well as funds 
provided and used in investing and financing activities.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the amounts provided in the financial statements. 

Required Supplemental Information

The required supplemental information provides historical information about RPU’s defined  
benefit pension plans including changes in the net pension liabilities, annual contributions  
made to the pension plans, and changes in plan provisions and actuarial assumptions.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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HIGHLIGHTS
•	 Rochester continued to grow with 1,252 new electric customers and 402 new water custom-

ers added in 2020. This compares with growth of 1,047 electric customers and 268 water 
customers in 2019.  

•	 Electric retail revenues were down $4.0 million or 2.7% from 2019, along with a decrease 
in kilowatt-hour sales of 46.5 million kWhs or 4.0%. Lower energy usage in the commercial 
and industrial sectors due to COVID-19 contributed to the decrease, along with a 0% rate 
increase in 2020. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in residential usage due 
to a warmer summer, and an increase in the Power Cost Adjustment (PCA), which passes 
through changes in wholesale power costs over or under a set base amount. Southern  
Minnesota Municipal Power Agency (SMMPA), RPU’s primary wholesale power supplier, had  
a 4.0% general rate decrease in 2019, but kept rates steady in 2020. Therefore, while the 
PCA had a negative effect on revenues in 2019, it had very little effect on revenues in 2020. 
The annual system peak demand of 265 megawatts was set in July, and compares with  
a peak demand of 284 megawatts in 2019 and the all-time system peak demand of  
292 megawatts in 2011. 

•	 Water retail revenues were up $0.7 million or 7.1% over 2019, along with an increase in sales 
volume 264,000 ccf (hundred cubic feet) or 5.0%. The increase in revenues was due to a 
3.5% rate increase effective January 1, 2020 along with the increase in sales volume. 

•	 The coronavirus pandemic had a negative impact on the Electric Utility, with a decrease in 
load resulting in lower revenues. To counteract this, some capital projects were deferred 
and reductions were made in operating costs. In addition, some open positions, as well  
as seasonal positions were left unfilled. A steady recovery is expected as the economy  
is gradually reopened. The Water Utility was not measurably impacted by the pandemic  
due to an increase in demand for water.

•	  In July 2020, the City of Rochester received $8.8 million in CARES Act funds to aid with  
the coronavirus pandemic. RPU was allocated just over $873,000 to provide qualified  
commercial and residential customers assistance with utility bills. RPU coordinated efforts 
with Olmsted County and other agencies to provide outreach to customers. 

•	 In 2019, RPU management recommended, and the Utility Board and Rochester City Council 
elected to keep rates steady in 2020 for the Electric Utility with no rate increase. An  
Electric Utility cost-of-service study was completed in 2020, and recommendations  
included support for a pilot residential time-of-use (TOU) rate, and no rate change for  
2021. The TOU rate structure was developed in 2020, and will be available in 2021 on a limited 
pilot basis to 200 customers. The TOU rate is designed to incent customers to move load 
from peak demand times to lower demand times. This is particularly true for new electric 
vehicle charging loads. A cost-of-service study was completed in 2019 for the Water  
Utility, with recommended rate adjustments proposed for the next five years. The Utility 
Board and Rochester City Council elected to approve a one-year increase of 3.5% for 2020. 
The increase was effective January 1, 2020. For 2021, given the current economic climate, 
the Utility Board and City Council elected to keep rates unchanged for the Water Utility. 

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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•	 Rates for purchased power from SMMPA did not change in 2020. Purchased power costs 
from SMMPA and the Midcontinent Independent System Operator (MISO) market represented 
64% of electric operating expenses for 2020. 

•	 In 2017, the Electric Utility was engaged in an administrative hearing before the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) involving the recovery of RPU’s Annual Transmission Revenue 
Requirement (ATRR) from transmission customers in the Midcontinent Independent System 
Operator, Inc. (MISO) region. Because of the uncertainty in the outcome of the case, a  
total of $7.1 million in related payments from MISO over the last three years were subject  
to refund and therefore recorded as Unearned Revenue. In April 2020, the FERC affirmed 
the recovery of RPU’s ATRR from transmission customers in the MISO region. The window  
for appeal of the FERC decision expired in June 2020, at which time the entire $7.1 million 
was recognized as revenue.

•	 In 2020, the Water Utility began the process of converting an old unused municipal well  
(Well #16) into a multi-aquifer monitoring well that will provide information for RPU, the 
Department of Natural Resources, and other agencies for water sustainability modeling. 
RPU currently pumps primarily from the Jordan aquifer. Well #16 is unique in that it is over 
1,000 feet deep and penetrates multiple aquifers below the Jordan aquifer. As Rochester 
continues to grow, RPU plans to monitor these deeper aquifers for potential future use or 
changes. Work completed in 2020 included the demolition of the well house, retrieval of an 
old submersible pump, and drilling out the well to its original depth. The installation of the 
monitoring well is planned for summer 2021.

•	 In 2016, the Rochester City Council adopted an Energy Action Plan, built around sustainability 
goals for the City’s energy, transportation, and heating and cooling sectors. The Energy 
Action Plan includes an 80% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from 2005 levels by the 
year 2050. In 2019, RPU updated the generation infrastructure plan to assess how to meet 
the long-term energy and capacity requirements, while achieving environmental goals. Of 
the scenarios presented, the RPU Board voted unanimously to pursue the two that would 
provide 100% of the City’s energy needs from renewable sources by 2030.  Both scenarios 
call for the purchase of enough wind and solar energy to equal Rochester’s annual energy 
consumption, with one scenario including a natural gas fired turbine generator to provide 
capacity and the second scenario including a four-hour battery storage backup that would 
be charged using energy available through the Midcontinent Independent System Operator,  
Inc. (MISO) market. RPU will continue to engage with residential and commercial customers 
to choose the best path for the community. In support of this plan, RPU’s aggressive  
Demand-Side Management (DSM) programs have been successful in reducing energy and 
water usage. The pilot residential TOU rate developed in 2020 is expected to support the 
DSM program in managing new load growth from electric vehicles (EV).

HIGHLIGHTS (continued)...

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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•	 In March 2020, the Utility Board approved a solar purchase power agreement with  
SolarStone/EDF Renewables Distributed Solutions, Inc., as well as the purchase of 134.84 
acres of land to construct a 10 megawatt solar farm. The agreement to purchase the  
output of the solar farm is for twenty years and allows RPU the option to purchase the 
system after eight years. A purchase agreement for the land was executed by RPU in late 
2020 and construction will begin in 2021. The system, which will be connected to RPU’s  
distribution system, and the land acquisition are building blocks toward RPU’s 2030  
resource plan and environmental goals.

•	 In 2020, land was acquired, and design work started on a new substation located in  
southeast Rochester. This substation will be constructed to accommodate a total of  
four 37.5 mega-volt amperes (MVA) transformers, with two of the four being installed  
with the initial buildout and the other two added as future needs arise. There will also be  
an approximately two-mile multiple conduit manhole and duct system installed from this 
new substation to terminal points in the downtown area. Construction is expected to  
begin in 2021.

•	 RPU surpassed the aggressive Demand-Side Management goal for 2020 of 18,243  
megawatt hours in energy savings. Actual energy savings of 20,754 megawatt hours  
were achieved through helping commercial and residential customers install energy  
efficient equipment and technologies. This represented an estimated 20,754 tons  
of carbon reduction, and amounted to 1.8% of annual retail energy sales. Water  
conservation rates, customer education, leak detection and rebates offered on  
clothes washers, high efficiency toilets, rain barrels and other items resulted in savings  
of 7.3 million gallons of water. This was a decrease of 1.8 million gallons from 2019, but  
surpassed the goal of 5.0 million gallons.

 

HIGHLIGHTS (continued)...

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS – ELECTRIC UTILITY
Condensed Financial Information – Electric Utility

December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In millions)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, & Changes in Net Position

Change
 2020 2019 2020 vs. 2019

Operating Revenues $169.2 $164.9        $4.3
Operating Expenses  135.0  137.2 (2.2) 

Operating Income    34.2    27.7         6.5

Other Income & Expense     2.1     2.4 (0.3)
Interest Charges    (6.3)    (6.4) 0.1  
Nonoperating (Expense)    (4.2)    (4.0) (0.2) 

Income Before Transfer and Capital Contributions    30.0    23.7 6.3

Transfers Out (In Lieu Of Tax Payments)    (8.4)    (8.7) 0.3  
Capital Contributions     2.4     0.7 1.7

Change in Net Position    24.0    15.7 8.3 

Net Position - Beginning of Year   181.5   165.8        15.7
Net Position - End of Year   $205.5   $181.5 $24.0

Statements of Net Position
Change

 2020 2019    2020 vs. 2019
Cash and Investments – Unrestricted    $90.4    $88.7 $1.7
Cash and Investments – Restricted     1.2     1.2 -
Other Current Assets    30.7    25.2 5.5
Capital Assets, Net   275.0   273.6 1.4 
Other Noncurrent Assets    24.8    25.1 (0.3) 

Total Assets   422.1   413.8 8.3 
Deferred Outflows of Resources     2.3     2.2 0.1

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources  $424.4  $416.0 $8.4 

Current Liabilities    $24.1    $24.5 ($0.4) 
Long-Term Debt   175.8   184.0 (8.2) 
Other Noncurrent Liabilities    17.5    22.6 (5.1) 

Total Liabilities   217.4   231.1 (13.7) 
Deferred Inflows of Resources     1.5     3.4 (1.9)  

Investment in Capital Assets   106.7    97.6 9.1 
Restricted – Debt Service     0.5     0.5 -
Unrestricted    98.3    83.4 14.9

Net Position   205.5   181.5 24.0
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position   $424.4   $416.0        $8.4 

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Operating Revenues
Operating revenues increased $4.3 million (2.6%) in 2020. Retail revenues were down $4.0 million 
(2.7%) due to a decrease in energy and demand, partially offset by an increase in the amount 
accrued through the Power Cost Adjustment. Wholesale and steam revenues increased $0.4 
million (7.0%), while other operating revenues increased $7.8 million. The increase in other operating  
revenues was due to the recognition of $7.1 million in transmission revenue from a favorable 
resolution in RPU’s FERC transmission case, as well as the accrual of a $4.3 million distribution  
of excess cash reserves from SMMPA late in the year, which was received in January 2021. 

Electric Operating Revenues
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See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Operating Expenses
Operating expenses decreased $2.2 million (1.6%) in 2020, due to a decrease in purchased power 
of $4.0 million. This was offset by an increase in depreciation of $1.0 million from the addition of 
the customer care system, as well as an increase in salaries and benefits utilized for operations 
and maintenance activities of $1.1 million. The primary driver of operating expenses for the  
Electric Utility continues to be power purchased from SMMPA and the MISO market, which  
comprised 64% of total operating expenses.

Electric Operating Expenses

Transfers Out
The Electric Utility makes transfers to the City of Rochester’s General Fund each month  
based on retail kilowatt-hours sold (in lieu of tax). Transfers to the City totaled $8.4 million  
and $8.7 million in 2020 and 2019 respectively. The decrease in the in lieu of tax amount was  
due to a decrease in kilowatt-hour sales. 

Capital Contributions 
Capital contributions increased by $1.7 million in 2020. Two large projects were started in  
2020 that include reimbursement from other parties.

Change in Net Position
The Change in Net Position for 2020 was $24.0 million, an increase of $8.3 million from 2019. 
Several factors contributed to this increase. Retail revenues decreased $4.0 million from 2019, 
offset by a $4.0 million decrease in purchased power. Wholesale and steam revenues increased 
by $0.4 million, while generation fuel remained steady. Other operating revenues increased by 
$7.8 million, along with an increase in capital contributions of $1.7 million. These were offset  
by an increase in other operating expenses of $1.9 million, consisting mainly of increases in  
depreciation, and salaries and benefits.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Electric Change in Net Position

CASh, Investments and Other Assets
The ending current unrestricted cash and investments balance for 2020 was $90.4 million,  
$1.7 million higher than 2019. The ending current restricted cash and investments balance  
stayed steady in 2020 at $1.2 million. This amount represents funds restricted for debt  
service payments. Other current assets for 2020 were $30.7 million, up $5.5 million from 2019. 
This increase was due primarily to an increase in other accounts receivable from the accrual of 
a $4.3 million distribution of excess cash reserves from SMMPA, along with increases in accrued 
utility revenues and prepayments, offset by a decrease in service accounts receivable.  
Other noncurrent assets for 2020 were $24.8 million, $0.3 million lower than 2019. 

Electric – Unrestricted Cash & Investments

Liabilities
Current liabilities decreased $0.4 million in 2020.

Noncurrent liabilities decreased $5.1 million in 2020 due to the favorable resolution of RPU’s  
FERC transmission case. A total of $7.1 million had been recorded as unearned revenue until  
the case was resolved, at which time the entire amount was recognized into revenue. This  
was offset partially by an increase in the Utility’s proportionate share of the liability from  
the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA).  
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Net Position
Net position invested in capital assets reflects additions to capital assets funded through 
rate-based revenues and fees from customers, net of debt proceeds expended on capital  
projects. In 2020, net position invested in capital assets increased $9.1 million compared to 2019.

Restricted net position remained steady. This represents funds restricted for payment of  
debt service.

Unrestricted net position is not subject to any constraints by debt covenants or other legal  
requirements. In 2020, unrestricted net position increased $14.9 million due to the results of  
operations.

CAPITAL ASSETS
As of December 31, 2020, the Electric Utility had $275.0 million invested in a broad range of  
utility capital assets, including a 46 megawatt reciprocating engine generation plant, two  
gas turbines, a hydroelectric power generation plant, two diesel generators, boiler plant and  
related equipment to provide steam to a large customer, electric transmission and distribution 
facilities, and various buildings and equipment. Capital assets increased $15.2 million in 2020, 
reflecting investments in general facilities and the distribution and transmission systems. The 
increase in capital assets was offset by a $13.8 million increase in accumulated depreciation. 
Additional details regarding the Utility’s total assets (Electric and Water) may be found in  
Note 5 to the financial statements. Capital expenditures increased by $0.4 million in 2020.

Electric – Capital Expenditures

LONG-TERM DEBT
As of December 31, 2020, the Utility had $165.2 million in revenue bonds outstanding. No new 
debt was issued, and $6.0 million was retired in 2020.

The Utility maintained an AA- bond rating from Fitch, and an Aa3 rating from Moody’s.  
Additional details regarding the Utility’s long-term debt may be found in Note 6 to the  
financial statements.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS – WATER UTILITY
Condensed Financial Information – Water Utility

December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In millions)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, & Changes in Net Position

Change

 2020 2019 2020 vs. 2019

Operating Revenues   $12.1   $11.6 $0.5 

Operating Expenses    10.5    10.3 0.2 

Operating Income     1.6     1.3 0.3

Other Income & Expense     0.2     0.2 -

Nonoperating Income     0.2     0.2 -

Income Before Transfers and Capital Contributions     1.8     1.5 0.3

Transfers Out (In Lieu Of Tax Payments)    (0.4)    (0.4) -  

Capital Contributions     1.3     0.9 0.4

Change in Net Position     2.7     2.0 0.7 

Net Position - Beginning of Year   107.0   105.0 2.0 

Net Position - End of Year  $109.7  $107.0 $2.7 

Statements of Net Position

Change

 2020 2019    2020 vs. 2019

Cash and Investments $12.0 $10.5 $1.5

Other Current Assets      1.3     1.1 0.2       

Capital Assets, Net    100.2    98.9 1.3

Total Assets   113.5   110.5 3.0 

Deferred Outflows of Resources   0.2   0.1 0.1

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $113.7 $110.6 $3.1 

Current Liabilities     $1.8     $1.5 $0.3

Noncurrent Liabilities 2.0 1.8 0.2           

Total Liabilities     3.8     3.3 0.5

Deferred Inflows of Resources     0.2     0.3 (0.1)        

Investment in Capital Assets 100.2 98.9   1.3 

Unrestricted     9.5     8.1 1.4

Net Position 109.7 107.0 2.7 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position    $113.7    $110.6 

                          
$3.1 

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Operating Revenues
Operating revenues increased by $0.5 million (4.3%) in 2020. Retail revenues were up $0.7 million 
(7.1%), due primarily to a 3.5% rate increase effective January 1, 2020, as well as an increase in 
sales volume.

Water Operating Revenues

Number of Water Customers			     Water Retail Sales

Other
17%

Residential
53% Commercial &

Industrial
30%

30,000

32,000

34,000

36,000

38,000

40,000

42,000

20202019201820172016

40
,1

99

39
,3

14

39
,7

48

40
,4

67

40
,8

69

cc
f

5,200,000

5,300,000

5,400,000

5,500,000

5,600,000

5,700,000

20202019201820172016

5,
72

8,
26

6

5,
77

4,
50

6

5,
61

8,
16

1

5,
59

3,
99

1

5,
33

0,
37

3

5,800,000

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.

35

Item 3.



 16   |   Rochester Public Utilities   |   2020 Annual Report   |   www.rpu.org  17   |   Rochester Public Utilities   |   2020 Annual Report   |   www.rpu.org

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses increased by $0.2 million (1.9%) in 2020 due primarily to an increase in the 
amount allocated to the Water Utility by the Electric Utility for labor and other shared expenses. 

Water Operating Expenses

In Lieu of Tax Payments
The Water Utility makes transfers to the City of Rochester’s General Fund each month based 
on the retail water volume (ccf - hundred cubic feet) sold. In 2020, $385,000 was transferred  
to the City. This was an increase of $27,000 over 2019 due to an increase in the ccf sales  
volume and an increase in the in lieu of tax rate.

Capital Contributions
Capital contributions increased $0.4 million in 2020. These are assets, primarily water mains  
and fire hydrants, which are contributed to the Water Utility from both the City and developers 
and are valued using a costing database that estimates their approximate construction costs. 
Beginning in 2013, the Utility took over the responsibility of paying for new water towers and  
reservoirs out of its own funds. The City collects a Water Availability Charge (WAC) specifically 
for this purpose and these funds will be used to reimburse the Water Utility for all or part of  
the cost of constructing new towers and reservoirs. No WAC funds were received in 2020.

Operation & 
Maintenance

74%

Depreciation
26%

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Change in Net Position
The Change in Net Position for 2020 was $2.7 million, $0.7 million higher than in 2019. This is due 
to a net increase in operating income in 2020, along with the increase in capital contributions  
of $0.4 million.

Water – Change in Net Position

Cash, Investments and Other Assets
The ending unrestricted cash and investments balance for 2020 was $12.0 million, $1.5 million 
higher than 2019.

Water – Unrestricted Cash & Investments
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Liabilities
Current liabilities increased $0.3 million in 2020. This was due to an increase in the amount  
owed to the City at the end of 2020 for water main replacements in conjunction with City 
street projects. 

Noncurrent liabilities increased $0.2 million in 2020 due to an increase in pension liability for  
the Utility’s proportionate share of the liability from PERA. 

Net Position
Net position invested in capital assets increased $1.3 million. This increase reflects additions  
to capital assets funded through rate-based revenues and fees from customers as well as  
contributed assets.

Unrestricted net position is not subject to any constraints established by debt covenants  
or other legal requirements. In 2020, unrestricted net position increased $1.4 million due to  
the results of operations. 

CAPITAL ASSETS
As of December 31, 2020, the Water Utility had $100.2 million invested in a broad range of 
utility capital assets, including 20 water storage facilities, 31 wells, water mains, pump station 
facilities, buildings, and equipment. Capital assets increased $4.0 million in 2020, reflecting 
capital contributions as well as construction associated with the growth of the City and 
general facilities of the Water Utility. This increase in capital assets was offset by a $2.7 million 
increase in accumulated depreciation. Additional details regarding the Utility’s total assets 
(Electric and Water) may be found in Note 5 to the financial statements. Capital expenditures 
increased $0.7 million in 2020. Some of the major expenditure components in 2020 were 
Destination Medical Center (DMC) projects, water main replacements in conjunction with  
City street projects, and metering.

Water – Capital Expenditures
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MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION
ECONOMIC FACTORS
The City Council has approved Electric and Water rate increases as needed to support the 
Utility on a cost-of-service basis. In November 2019, the Utility Board voted to hold rates steady 
for 2020 for the Electric Utility and approved a 3.5% rate increase for the Water Utility. The 
rate maintenance and increase maintain the financial health of both Utilities, fund capital 
replacements and the continued growth of the City, while contributing to reserves for future 
replacement of aging infrastructure. The table below compares historical Electric and Water 
rate increases with the annual inflation rate, as well as an average for the last five years. 

ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC AND WATER RATE CHANGE VERSUS INFLATION 

Year Inflation % Electric Rates % Water Rates %

2021 2.0%* 0.0% 0.0%

2020 1.2%* 0.0% 3.5%

2019 1.8% 1.9% 6.0%

2018 2.4% 1.5% 6.0%

2017 2.1% 3.7% 6.0%

Annualized Average 1.9% 1.4% 4.3%

*Estimated Yearly Values

In addition to inflation, management continually plans for and identifies issues or potential 
contingencies that could impact future rates, such as system expansion, replacement of aging 
infrastructure, future supply costs, regulatory changes, and others. Growth of the city directly 
affects several of these factors. 

The housing market had a strong year again in 2020, with 274 building permits totaling $79.8 
million issued for single-family homes as compared to 294 permits totaling $80.3 million in 2019. 
Commercial building permits for 2020 saw 30 permits totaling $71.1 million as compared to 40 
permits totaling $57.7 million in 2019. The 2020 amounts include a permit for a school, which 
accounts for much of the increase.

According to the US Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics, the December 2020 
unemployment rate of 3.9% for the area remains below the state and national rates of 4.9% 
and 6.7%, respectively. The employment data shows that, on average, employment was down 
approximately 11% from the previous year. 

The DMC initiative continues to develop and is projected to have a major impact on the future 
economic growth of the city. Legislation passed in 2013 required two bodies to be created:  
the DMC Corporation, an oversight body, and the DMC Economic Development Agency (EDA),  
a private nonprofit agency that contracts with the DMC Corporation Board to act as its staff, 
working with the City of Rochester and other stakeholders to develop and execute the DMC 

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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plans and strategy. These two groups were organized in 2013 and 2014 and now meet regularly. 
In March 2014, the EDA began work on the DMC Development Plan, which was adopted by the 
City of Rochester in March 2015 and by the DMC Corporation in April 2015. The EDA, working with 
stakeholder organizations and the City of Rochester, is now charged with implementing the 
DMC Development Plan over the next twenty years. Specifically for Rochester, this will mean the 
creation of thousands of new jobs and an estimated $270 million in additional tax revenue over 
the next twenty years, along with the creation and retention of new businesses with a focus 
on biotech companies. In 2017, an important milestone was reached when private investments 
reached the $200 million mark, triggering the release of over $500 million in State funding for 
infrastructure investment. In 2019, private investments totaled $272 million, bringing the total 
private investment in DMC to $962.8 million and the total public investment to $98.4 million. 
Current priorities include Discovery Square, an integrated district for the future of biomedical, 
research, education, and technology innovation; Heart of the City, which would extend and 
enhance the Peace Plaza; and transportation. Several projects connected with these priorities 
are either in process or have recently been approved by the DMC Corporation Board. These 
projects include:

•	Two Discovery Square – a 124,000 square foot, Leadership in Energy and Environmental 
Design (LEED) certified medical office and lab building with connectivity to One Discovery 
Square, a biomedical sciences building completed in 2019.

•	Hyatt House development – hotel development of an under-utilized street corner and 
gateway into downtown Rochester and the Mayo Clinic medical campus.

•	Rochester Rapid Transit System – an approximately three-mile bus rapid transit route, 
which in its first phase will run from a west transit village to downtown Rochester with 
seven stations.

•	Heart of the City – Phase 1 is under construction and expected to be completed in 
summer of 2021.

•	Discovery Walk – a linear parkway along 2nd Avenue in downtown Rochester connecting 
Soldiers Field to Annenberg Plaza near Mayo Clinic

The coronavirus pandemic in 2020 has had a negative economic impact on both the community 
as a whole and the Utility. RPU is projecting a gradual recovery. Based on this, along with the 
cost-of-service studies completed in 2020 for the Electric Utility and 2019 for the Water Utility, 
and keeping in mind the impact to ratepayers, management recommended holding rates 
steady for both the Electric and Water Utility in 2021. 

Rochester Public Utilities continues to provide a customer focused reliable service to a vibrant 
and growing Rochester area through efficient, reliable and responsible operations that work to 
serve our customers and community.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
The financial statements, notes, and management discussion and analysis are designed to 
provide a general overview of RPU’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report should be directed to RPU at 4000 E River Rd NE, Rochester, MN 55906.  
The phone number is (507) 280-1500. Additional information regarding RPU may also be found  
on its website at www.rpu.org.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Electric Utility
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2020
2020

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $16,475,623 
Investments 73,937,210
Accounts Receivable (Net) and Accrued Utility Revenues 22,620,609
Inventories 6,180,943
Other Current Assets 1,925,357

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,174,529

Total Current Assets 122,314,271
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:

Investments 12,955,835
Capital Assets:

Construction Work in Progress 13,473,183
Land and Land Rights 9,543,522
Depreciable Assets, Net 252,005,628

Net Capital Assets 275,022,333
Other Assets 11,854,296

Total Noncurrent Assets 299,832,464
Total Assets 422,146,735

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Bond Refunding 808,121
Pension Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,476,546

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,284,667
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $424,431,402 

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $9,933,468 
Due to the Municipality 2,827,807
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,960,578
Accrued Compensation 655,116
Customer Deposits 1,818,877
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Interest Payable 648,279
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 6,315,000

Total Current Liabilities 24,159,125
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accrued Compensated Absences 1,462,251
Pre-1968 Pensions Liability 6,000
Net Pension Liability 14,285,386
Unearned Revenues 1,777,751
Long-Term Debt 175,764,837

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 193,296,225
Total Liabilities 217,455,350

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Revenue 401,081
Pension Deferred Inflows of Resources 686,226
Solar Choice Deferred Inflows of Resources 416,325

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,503,632

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 106,706,453
Restricted 

Debt Service 526,250
Unrestricted 98,239,717

Total Net Position 205,472,420
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position $424,431,402 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Electric Utility
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and  
Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

2020
Operating Revenues:

Retail $143,974,946 
Wholesale 1,939,151
Other 23,279,215

Total Operating Revenues 169,193,312
Operating Expenses:

Purchased Power 85,672,582
Operations and Maintenance 34,368,964
Depreciation 14,515,722
Amortization of Regulatory Assets 443,271

Total Operating Expenses 135,000,539
Operating Income 34,192,773
Nonoperating Income (Expenses):

Investment Income 2,179,639
Interest Expense (6,340,590)
Amortization of Regulatory Assets (80,602)
Miscellaneous, Net (6,400)

Total Nonoperating (Expenses) (4,247,953)
Income Before Transfers and Capital Contributions 29,944,820

Transfers Out (8,369,519)
Capital Contributions 2,368,672

Change in Net Position 23,943,973
Net Position, Beginning of Year 181,528,447
Net Position, End of Year $205,472,420 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Electric Utility
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $152,988,275 
Cash Paid to Suppliers (104,411,308)
Cash Paid to Employees (19,315,052)
Internal Activity - Payments From Other Funds 5,826,940
Service Territory Acquisition (188,312)

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 34,900,543
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:

Operating Transfers to Other Funds (8,378,166)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Additions to Utility Plant and Other Assets (15,285,289)
Capital Contributions Received 2,362,672
Principal Payments on Bonds (6,015,000)
Interest Payments on Bonds (8,080,100)

Net Cash Used In Capital and Related Financing Activities (27,017,717)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Interest Received 2,179,639
Investment Redemptions 338,355

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 2,517,994
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,022,654

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 15,627,498
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 17,650,152
Classified As:

Current Nonrestricted Assets 16,475,623
Restricted Assets 1,174,529

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $17,650,152 

2020
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income $34,192,773 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 14,958,993
Bad Debts 720,154
Service Territory Payments (188,312)
(Increase) Decrease In:

Accounts Receivable and Accrued Utility Revenues (5,536,702)
Inventories (131,348)
Other Current Assets (601,477)

Increase (Decrease) In:
Accrued Liabilities and Accounts Payable (1,241,708)
Customer Deposits 75,186
Deferred Lease Revenues (36,420)
Unearned Revenues (6,844,682)
Pension Deferred Outflow/Inflow (419,656)
Solar Choice Deferred Inflow (46,258)

  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $34,900,543 

Noncash Financing and Investing Activities:
Additions to Utility Plant and Other Assets Contributed By Developers 6,000
Amortization of Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Refunding (1,746,935)
Amortization of Bond Issue Costs 80,602
Unrealized Gain on Investments 641,500

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Water Utility
Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2020

2020
ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $2,182,242 
Investments 9,793,190
Accounts Receivable (Net) and Accrued Utility Revenues 952,222
Inventories 199,994
Other Current Assets 140,665

Total Current Assets 13,268,313
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:

Construction Work in Progress 4,287,566
Land and Land Rights 677,486
Depreciable Assets, Net 95,234,673

Net Capital Assets 100,199,725
Total Noncurrent Assets 100,199,725

Total Assets 113,468,038
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension Deferred Outflows of Resources 197,011
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $113,665,049 

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $276,779 
Due to the Municipality 972,210
Accrued Compensated Absences 317,936
Accrued Compensation 94,779
Customer Deposits 128,883

Total Current Liabilities 1,790,587
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accrued Compensated Absences 219,919
Net Pension Liability 1,807,972

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,027,891
Total Liabilities 3,818,478

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Revenue 92,216
Pension Deferred Inflows of Resources 83,847

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 176,063

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 100,199,725
Unrestricted 9,470,783

Total Net Position 109,670,508
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position $113,665,049 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Water Utility
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and  
Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

2020
Operating Revenues:

Retail $10,665,362 
Other 1,422,674

Total Operating Revenues 12,088,036
Operating Expenses:

Operations and Maintenance 7,800,244
Depreciation 2,745,455

Total Operating Expenses 10,545,699
Operating Income 1,542,337
Nonoperating Income (Expenses):

Investment Income 223,343
Interest Expense (775)
Miscellaneous, Net (4,609)

Total Nonoperating Income 217,959
Income Before Transfers and Capital Contributions 1,760,296

Transfers Out (384,531)
Capital Contributions 1,283,398

Change in Net Position 2,659,163
Net Position, Beginning of Year 107,011,345
Net Position, End of Year $109,670,508 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Water Utility
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

2020
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers $11,720,719 
Cash Paid to Suppliers (5,351,426)
Cash Paid to Employees (2,460,194)
Internal Activity - Payments From Other Funds 181,024

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 4,090,123
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:

Operating Transfers to Other Funds (384,890)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Additions to Utility Plant and Other Assets (2,481,565)
Net Cash Used In Capital and Related Financing Activities (2,481,565)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest Received 222,567
Investment Purchases (979,100)

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (756,533)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 467,135

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,715,107
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $2,182,242 

2020
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income $1,542,337 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 2,745,455
Bad Debts 27,420
(Increase) Decrease In:

Accounts Receivable and Accrued Utility Revenues (245,859)
Inventories (4,066)
Prepaid and Other Current Assets (49,191)

Increase (Decrease) In:
Accrued Liabilities and Accounts Payable 31,721
Customer Deposits 725
Deferred Revenue 59,567
Pension Deferred Outflow/Inflow (17,986)

  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $4,090,123 

Noncash Financing and Investing Activities:
Additions to Utility Plant and Other Assets Contributed By:

City’s Governmental Funds $116,181 
Developers $1,167,217 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Rochester Public Utilities (Utilities or RPU) have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
applied to enterprise funds of governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles.

The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the Utilities are described below.

Reporting Entity
The Utilities are comprised of two proprietary funds, the Electric and the Water Enterprise 
Funds of the City of Rochester, Minnesota (municipality). The Electric Utility is engaged in the 
generation, transmission, and distribution of electric power and energy, and related activities. 
The Water Utility is engaged in the supply, purification, and distribution of water, and related 
activities. The Utilities provide electric and water service to properties concentrated  
geographically in or near the City of Rochester.

The Utilities are a municipal utility governed by a five-member board under the authority of  
the Home Rule Charter. The equity of the Utilities is vested in the City of Rochester, Minnesota.  

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and  
Financial Statement Presentation
The Utilities are presented as enterprise funds of the municipality. Enterprise funds are used  
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.

Activities are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred, even though actual payment or receipt 
may not occur until after the period ends.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and  
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources,  
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities  
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. Actual results could differ from the estimates.
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Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources and Net Position

Deposits and Investments
For purposes of reporting cash flows the Utilities consider all highly liquid debt  
instruments purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or less to be  
cash equivalents.

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could 
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The bases of fair values 
are described in the notes to the City of Rochester’s financial statements included in 
the City’s 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. No investments are reported  
at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are  
recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income. 
Fair values may have changed significantly after year end.

Investments of Utilities’ funds are restricted by state statutes. Investments are limited to: 

(a)	 Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.

(b) 	 Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment Company 
Act of 1940 and whose only investments are in securities described in (a) above.

(c) 	 General obligations of the State of Minnesota or its municipalities.

(d) 	 Bankers acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal 
Reserve System.

(e) 	 Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian  
subsidiaries, of the highest quality, and maturing in 270 days or less.

(f) 	 Repurchase agreements with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve  
System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a reporting dealer to the  
Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker/dealers.

(g) 	 Money market funds with institutions that have portfolios consisting exclusively  
of United States Treasury obligations and Federal Agency issues.

(h) 	 Guaranteed investment contract (gic’s) issued or guaranteed by United States 
commercial banks or domestic branches of foreign banks or United States  
insurance company and with a credit quality in one of the top two highest  
categories. Agreements or contracts for guaranteed investment contracts  
with a term of 18 months or less may be entered into provided that the issuer’s  
or guarantor’s long-term unsecured debt is rated in one of the three highest  
rating categories (minimum A- or the equivalent) and the credit quality of the  
issuer’s short-term unsecured debt is rated in the highest category (minimum  
A-1 or the equivalent).

As funds of the City of Rochester, MN, the Utilities are governed by the investment  
policy that has been adopted by the Rochester City Council. That policy follows the 
state statute for allowable investments.

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)...

48

Item 3.



 28   |   Rochester Public Utilities   |   2020 Annual Report   |   www.rpu.org  29   |   Rochester Public Utilities   |   2020 Annual Report   |   www.rpu.org

Receivables/Payables and Accrued Utility Revenues
Outstanding balances between the Utilities and the primary government are reported 
as due from/to the municipality.

The Utilities provide an allowance for losses on receivables, as needed, for accounts 
considered uncollectible. Accounts receivable have been reduced by an Allowance for 
Doubtful Accounts of $560,000 for the Electric Utility and $50,000 for the Water Utility 
for December 31, 2020.

Revenues are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting and include estimated 
amounts for service rendered but not billed. Accrued revenue amounts are $5,753,163  
for the Electric Utility and $185,153 for the Water Utility for the year ended  
December 31, 2020.

Included in the Electric Accounts Receivable balance is an accrual of a $4,267,058 dis-
tribution of excess cash reserves from Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Authority 
(SMMPA) that was received in January 2021. 

Inventories
Materials and supplies are generally used for construction, operation and maintenance 
work, not for resale. They are valued using the lower of moving average cost or market 
and charged to construction or expense when used. Fossil fuel inventory is valued at 
cost, using the last-in, first-out method.

Restricted Assets
Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such  
segregations are required by bond agreements and other external parties. RPU’s  
general policy is that when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available  
for use, it is the Utility’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted  
resources. 

Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses are recorded for insurance premiums and maintenance contracts  
related to computer equipment. Costs under these agreements are expensed over  
the time periods covered by the agreements.

Capital Assets	
Capital assets are defined by the Utilities as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
$5,000 or more, or group assets with a value of $25,000 or more, and an estimated  
useful life in excess of one year.

Capital assets are recorded at cost or the estimated acquisition value at the time  
of contribution to RPU. Major outlays for capital assets are capitalized as projects  

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)...
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are constructed. Capital assets in service are depreciated or amortized using the 
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Electric Plant Years

Generation 10-60
Transmission 20-45
Distribution 10-50
General  5-50

Water Plant Years

Source of Supply 15-70
Pumping 10-50
Water Treatment 30-80
Transmission and Distribution 50-80
General 5-80

Other Assets – Noncurrent
Other Assets – Noncurrent includes Regulatory Assets consisting of Bond Issue Costs 
and Service Territory Acquisition Costs. Refer to Note 10 for additional information on 
the Utility’s application of accounting for the effect of rate regulation.

A summary of changes in the Electric Utility assets for 2020 follows:

Balance 01/01/20 Increases Decreases Balance 12/31/20

Bond issue costs $2,319,943 $   - $   - $2,319,943

Less: Amortization of bond issue costs 1,375,139 80,602 - 1,455,741

Nonoperating Other Assets 944,804 864,202

Regulatory asset-Service territory payments 17,357,596 199,435 - 17,557,031

Less: Amortization of Regulatory asset 6,123,666 443,271 - 6,566,937

Operating Other Assets 11,233,930 10,990,094

Net Other Assets $12,178,734 $11,854,296

Deferred Outflows of Resources
A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until 
that future time.

The Electric Utility has issued revenue bonds to finance the advance and current  
refunding of the outstanding revenue bonds. The refunding resulted in a difference  
between the reacquisition price and net carrying amount of the old debt. This difference 
is being amortized and charged to operations over the bond term using the effective 
interest method. The unamortized balance as of December 31, 2020 is $808,121. 

See Note 8 for additional information regarding pension deferred outflows (inflows)  
of resources.

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)...
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Accrued Compensation and Compensated Absences
Vacation pay, which is payable upon termination, is accrued as it is earned by employees.

The Utilities’ sick leave liability is estimated based on the Utilities’ past experience of 
making termination payments for sick leave. Employees are compensated upon termination 
for forty percent of their unused sick leave, after meeting certain qualifications.

Customer Deposits
Customer deposits are recorded for security deposits paid by customers to receive  
utility services. Deposits are returned to customers with good credit history in  
accordance with criteria established in the Utilities’ policies. Customers are paid  
interest on deposits at the rate established annually by the Minnesota Department  
of Commerce.

Unearned Revenues
Under the terms of a 2015 agreement, the Electric Utility constructed a substation  
to meet the specifications of a large customer. The customer paid a Contribution  
in Aid of Construction (CIAC) for redundant facilities for reliability purposes and for  
substation capacity in excess of current needs. Per the agreement, the customer  
can earn a refund of a portion of the CIAC related to excess capacity based on  
their measured load over the term from 2019 through 2027. A portion of the excess  
capacity payment becomes ineligible for refund in each of those years if the load  
requirement specified in the agreement is not achieved. During 2020, $246,000 of  
the potential refund became ineligible for refund as the load requirement was not  
met and, as of December 31, 2020, $1,722,000 of the potential refund remained  
recorded as an Unearned Revenue. The amount of Unearned Revenue will be reduced 
each year through the remainder of the ten-year term, having either been refunded  
to the customer if load requirement has been met, or recorded as a Contribution in  
Aid of Construction if not met. The substation went in service in May, 2017.
 
As described in Note 11 under Legal Matters, the Electric Utility was engaged in an  
administrative hearing before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)  
involving the recovery of RPU’s Annual Transmission Revenue Requirement from  
transmission customers in the Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc. (MISO) 
region. During 2018, FERC issued an order affirming the administrative law judge’s  
2017 ruling that RPU was entitled to recovery of its revenue requirement related to its  
investment in MISO Zone 16. FERC’s order was subject to a possible appeal, and all  
related payments MISO had made to RPU until the final determination were recorded  
as unearned revenue. In 2020, the case was resolved in RPU’s favor, at which time  
the entire amount was recognized as revenue.  
 
As of December 31, 2020, customers had paid the Electric Utility $55,751 as advances  
for construction of utility infrastructure, which is reflected as Unearned Revenue.  
When the construction has been completed, such amounts will be recorded as Capital 
Contributions. 

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)...
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Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as the Utilities’ liabilities. Bond  
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using  
the effective interest method. Gains or losses on prior bond refundings are amortized 
over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. 

Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of  
resources, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of  
the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA) and additions  
to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same  
basis as they are reported by PERA except that PERA’s fiscal year end is June 30.  
For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates 
and benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in  
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Inflows of Resources
A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies  
to a future period and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources  
(revenue) until that future time.

The Electric Utility leases a portion of its transmission system, known as the North  
Loop, to Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Agency (SMMPA) under a non-cancelable 
operating lease through the year 2030. The Utility is responsible for all operating and 
maintenance costs. The Utility received a lump sum payment of $1,500,000 in 1989 and 
annual lease revenues of $36,420 are being recognized ratably over the lease term.  
The amount deferred as of December 31, 2020 was $337,595.

Beginning in January, 2018, the Electric Utility, working through its primary power  
supplier SMMPA, began a new program offering called SolarChoice whereby customers 
can subscribe to one or more solar panels from a utility-scale solar installation  
contracted to SMMPA. Each month customers receive a bill credit for the amount of 
energy generated by their subscribed panels. The subscription cost of $650 per solar 
panel was initially recorded as a deferred inflow and is being recognized into revenue 
ratably over the twelve-year term of the subscription, 2019 through 2029. As of  
December 31, 2020 $416,325 remained as deferred.

At the end of 2020, the Electric Utility had advance payments of $63,486, which  
included the unamortized portion of capacity sales, as well as advance payments  
for leased space on poles. The Water Utility received advance payments for leasing  
antenna space on its water towers. The amount of advance payments held as of  
December 31, 2020 was $92,216. 

See Note 8 for additional information regarding pension deferred outflows (inflows)  
of resources.

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)...
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Revenues and Expenses
The Utilities distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering 
goods in connection with principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
Utilities are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost 
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Charges for Services
Billings are rendered and recorded monthly based on metered usage.

Current electric and water rates were approved by the Utility Board and the City Council 
and placed into effect on January 1, 2020.

Transfers
Transfers include the payment in lieu of taxes to the municipality and outgoing contributions 
in aid of construction when the payment is between the two utilities that comprise RPU.

Capital Contributions
Cash and capital assets are contributed to the Utilities from customers, the municipality 
or external parties. The value of property contributed to the Utilities is reported as  
revenues on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Significant Customers
The top ten users of the Electric Utility represent sales of 328,921 megawatt hours 
(mWh) of use, which is 29.2% of the total retail mWh sales in 2020. These users also  
represent $43,192,879 or 25.5% of the total 2020 operating revenues. The top two users 
of RPU account for approximately 199,056 mWh of use, which is 17.6% of the total retail 
mWh sales in 2020 and represents $25,872,772 or 15.3% of the total 2020 operating  
revenues. Section 13.685 of the Minnesota Statutes does not allow the disclosure of  
the identity of privately owned companies or individuals and their electric consumption, 
so the top ten users cannot be disclosed. RPU is not aware of any significant changes 
by these users that would affect the overall consumption or revenue production by its 
biggest customers.

The top ten users of the Water Utility represent sales of 930,939 hundred cubic feet 
(ccf) of use, which is 16.6% of the total ccf sales in 2020. These users also represent 
$1,177,097 or 9.7% of the total 2020 operating revenues. The top two users of RPU  
account for approximately 588,991 ccf of use, which is 10.5% of the total ccf sales in 
2020 and represents $759,165 or 6.3% of the total 2020 operating revenues.

Effect of New Accounting Standards on Current Period Financial Statements 
GASB has approved GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, Statement No. 89, Accounting for 
Interest Cost incurred before the End of a Construction Period, Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt 
Obligations, Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank 
Offered Rates, Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Arrangement, Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements and Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. 
When they become effective, application of these standards may restate portions of these 
financial statements.

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)...
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NOTE 2: Deposits and Investments

All deposits are insured or collateralized by securities held by the City of Rochester or its 
agents in the City’s name.

The Utilities’ equity in the City of Rochester cash and investment pool is based on actual cash 
receipts and disbursements and a monthly allocation of investment earnings on a pro-rata 
basis. Investments held in the investment pool, associated risks and fair value measurements 
are disclosed in the notes to the City of Rochester’s basic financial statements included in the 
City’s 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

NOTE 3: Due to the Municipality

The following is a schedule of balances as of December 31, 2020:

Due To Due From Principal Purpose 2020 Amount 
Municipality Electric General operating $90,865
Municipality Electric Payments in lieu of tax 683,690
Municipality Electric Sewer and Storm water revenue 3,285,901

Total Electric Due To Municipality 4,060,456
Electric Municipality Sewer and Storm water billing fees 141,982
Electric Municipality Utility bills 378,456
Electric Municipality Utility bill collections 2,245
Electric Municipality General operating 298,706
Electric Municipality Interest on investments 411,260

Total Electric Due From Municipality 1,232,649
Electric Net Due to Municipality $2,827,807

Municipality Water General operating $40,519
Municipality Water Watermain replacement 914,724
Municipality Water Payments in lieu of tax 26,580

Total Water Due To Municipality 981,823
Water Municipality Utility bills 9,091
Water Municipality General operating 522

Total Water Due From Municipality 9,613
Water Net Due to Municipality $972,210

The following is a schedule of transfer balances for the year ending December 31, 2020:

Transfer From Transfer To Principal Purpose 2020 Amount 
Electric Municipality Tax Equivalents $8,369,519

Water Municipality Tax Equivalents $384,531
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NOTE 4: Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Utilities’ revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their 
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their 
use is limited. The following accounts are reported as restricted assets of the Electric Utility: 

2020

Current Assets

Debt Service Account $1,174,529 

Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months.

Noncurrent Assets

Reserve Account $12,955,835 

Proceeds deposited to be used to pay principal and interest payments on long-term debt.

NOTE 5: Changes in Capital Assets

Electric
A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2020 follows:

Balance 01/01/20 Increases Decreases Balance 12/31/20

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $8,167,887 $10,147,469 $4,842,173 $13,473,183
Land and land rights 9,542,782 740  -  9,543,522

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 17,710,669 10,148,209 4,842,173 23,016,705

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, structures and improvements 65,796,775 1,467,569  -  67,264,344
Installations, equipment and fixtures 423,175,881 9,504,130 1,055,222 431,624,789

Total capital assets, being depreciated 488,972,656 10,971,699 1,055,222 498,889,133
Less: Accumulated depreciation 233,038,771 14,515,722 670,988 246,883,505

Depreciable Assets, Net 255,933,885 252,005,628

Net Capital Assets $273,644,554 $275,022,333

In 2020, others contributed noncash capital assets of $6,000 to the Electric Utility.
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Water
A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2020 follows:

Balance 01/01/20 Increases Decreases Balance 12/31/20

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

 Construction in progress $2,130,814 $3,396,064 $1,239,312 $4,287,566

 Land and land rights 677,486  -   -  677,486

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,808,300 3,396,064 1,239,312 4,965,052

Capital assets, being depreciated:

 Buildings, structures and improvements 19,189,171  -   -  19,189,171

 Installations, equipment and fixtures 130,955,055 1,904,872 67,650 132,792,277

Total capital assets, being depreciated 150,144,226 1,904,872 67,650 151,981,448

Less: Accumulated depreciation 54,041,515 2,745,455 40,195 56,746,775

Depreciable Assets, Net 96,102,711 95,234,673

Net Capital Assets $98,911,011 $100,199,725

In 2020, capital assets totaling $116,181 were contributed to the Water Utility by other funds of 
the City of Rochester, and others contributed $1,167,217 to the Utility.

NOTE 6: Long-Term Obligations	
	
Electric
The following revenue bonds have been issued:

Date Purpose Final  
Maturity

Interest  
Rate

Original  
Amount

Outstanding 
Amount 12/31/20

2/15/17 Revenue Bond Series 2017A-Westside Energy Station, 
Customer Service Center expansion, transmission and 
substation work, distribution system expansion, and 
refund remaining 2007C issue

12/1/47 2.00-5.00% $108,255,000 $99,480,000

11/17/15 Revenue Bond Series 2015E-Advance refund a portion of 
the 2007C issue

12/1/30 3.00-5.00% 39,970,000 31,690,000

5/29/13 Revenue Bond Series 2013B-CapX2020 Southwest Metro 
to Rochester to La Crosse transmission line project

12/1/43  3.00-5.00% 38,370,000 33,995,000

NOTE 5: Changes in Capital Assets (continued)...
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity follows:

Year Ending December 31 Principal Interest Total 

2021  $6,315,000  $7,779,350 $14,094,350

2022 6,625,000 7,472,050 14,097,050

2023 6,955,000 7,140,800 14,095,800

2024 7,310,000 6,793,050 14,103,050

2025 7,605,000 6,488,150 14,093,150

2026-2030 43,340,000 27,140,800 70,480,800

2031-2035 21,115,000 19,332,050 40,447,050

2036-2040 26,605,000 13,829,350 40,434,350

2041-2045 28,810,000 6,728,250 35,538,250

2046-2047 10,485,000 792,750 11,277,750

$165,165,000 $103,496,600 $268,661,600

All utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above 
revenue bonds until the bonds are paid off. Principal and interest paid for 2020 was $14,095,100, 
which consisted entirely of scheduled principal and interest payments. Total gross revenues 
as defined for the same period were $171,372,951. Annual principal and interest payments are 
expected to require 5.8% of gross revenues on average.

All of the Utility’s outstanding revenue bonds contain a provision that upon the occurrence and 
continuation of an event of default, the bond owners’ trustee, or if there is none, the owners of 
25% in aggregate amount of the parity bonds then outstanding, may, by written notice to the 
City, declare the entire unpaid principal of the parity bonds due and payable.
 

Long-Term Obligations Summary – Electric
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 is as follows:

01/01/20 Balance Additions Reductions 12/31/20 Balance Due Within  
One Year

Long-term debt $171,180,000  $   -  $6,015,000 $165,165,000 $6,315,000 
Bond discount/premium 18,821,491  -  1,906,654 16,914,837  -  
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,137,122 366,399 80,692 3,422,829 1,960,578
Pre-1968 Pension Liability 6,000  -   -  6,000  -  
Net Pension Liability 12,584,021 1,701,365  -  14,285,386  -  
Unearned Revenue 8,622,433 18,851 6,863,533 1,777,751  -  

Totals $214,351,067 $2,086,615 $14,865,879 $201,571,803 $8,275,578 

NOTE 6: Long-Term Obligations (continued)...
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Long-Term Obligations Summary – Water
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 is as follows:

01/01/20 Balance Additions Reductions 12/31/20 Balance
Due Within  

One Year

Accrued Compensated Absences $506,393  $148,660  $117,198 $537,855 $317,936 

Net Pension Liability 1,561,107 246,865  -  1,807,972  -  

Totals $2,067,500 $395,525 $117,198 $2,345,827 $317,936 

Interest Expense – Electric
2020

Bond interest expense $8,055,038 

Bond premium, discount & refunding amortization (1,746,935)

Interest expense 32,487

Totals $6,340,590 

NOTE 7: Net Position

GASB Statement No. 34 requires the classification of net position into three components – net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as 
follows:

Net investment in capital assets
This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that 
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this component 
of net position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows 
of resources at the end of the reporting period, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows 
of resources attributable to the unspent amount are not included in the calculation of net 
investment in capital assets. Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources 
are included in the same net position component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount.

Restricted
This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources related to those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if 
the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the recognition of a liability or if the 
liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 

Unrestricted
This component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net 
investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

NOTE 6: Long-Term Obligations (continued)...
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NOTE 8: Pension Plans

A. 	Plan Description
The Utilities, as departments of the City of Rochester, participate in the General 
Employees Retirement Plan cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). 
PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and administered in accordance 
with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. PERA’s defined benefit pension plans 
are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the Utilities are covered by the General 
Employees Plan. General Employees Plan members belong to the Coordinated Plan. 
Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security.

B. 	Benefits Provided
PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are 
established by state statute and can only be modified by the state Legislature. 
Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits, but are not receiving  
them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated  
their public service. 

General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for 
any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination 
of service. Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’s Coordinated Plan 
members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive the higher of Method 1 or Method 
2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after June 30, 1989. Under Method 
1, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.2% of average salary for each of the 
first ten years of service and 1.7% of average salary for each additional year. Under 
Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.7% of average salary for all 
years of service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when 
age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired 
on or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security 
benefits capped at 66.

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Beginning in 2019, 
the postretirement increase is equal to 50% of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) 
announced by the SSA, with a minimum increase of at least 1% and a maximum of 1.5%. 
Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least a full year as of 
the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full increase. For 
recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full 
year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive a reduced 
prorated increase. For members retiring on January 1, 2024, or later, the increase will 
be delayed until normal retirement age (age 65 if hired prior to July 1, 1989, or age 66 for 
individuals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members retiring under Rule of 90 are exempt 
from the delay to normal retirement.
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C. 	Contributions
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee 
contributions. Contribution rates can only be modified by the state Legislature. 

Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.5% of their annual  
covered salary in calendar year 2020; the Utilities were required to contribute 7.5%  
for Coordinated Plan members. The Utilities’ contributions to the General Employees 
Fund for the year ended December 31, 2020, were $1,276,070 and $161,082 for the 
Electric Utility and Water Utility respectively. The Utilities’ contributions were  
equal to the required contributions as set by state statute.

D. 	Pension Costs
At December 31, 2020, the Electric Utility reported a liability of $14,285,386, and 
the Water Utility reported a liability of $1,807,972 as each utility’s allocated share 
of the City of Rochester’s proportionate share of $46,872,483 of the General 
Employees Fund’s net pension liability. The City of Rochester’s net pension liability 
reflected a reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million. 
The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity and the 
state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The State 
of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the 
City of Rochester totaled $1,445,366. The net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City of Rochester’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions received 
by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 
2019, through June 30, 2020, relative to the total employer contributions received from 
all of PERA’s participating employers. The City’s proportionate share was 0.7818% at 
the end of the measurement period and 0.7473% for the beginning of the period.

City of Rochester’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $46,872,483
State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City of Rochester 1,445,366

Total $48,317,849

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Electric Utility and Water Utility recognized 
pension expense of $862,736 and $144,523 respectively as allocated shares of the 
City of Rochester’s General Employees Plan’s pension expense. In addition, the City 
recognized an additional $125,791 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its 
proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million to the 
General Employees Fund. 

NOTE 8: Pension Plans (continued)...
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At December 31, 2020, the Electric Utility reported its allocated share of the City of 
Rochester’s General Employees Plan’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience $124,498 	 $54,050    
Changes in actuarial assumptions         - 518,577
Net collective difference between projected and actual investment earnings 266,684                                               -
Changes in proportion 437,686 113,599
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to the measurement date 647,678 -

Total $1,476,546 $686,226

The $647,678 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions  
resulting from Electric Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date will 
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 
2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related  
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31: Pension Expense Amount

2021 ($758,940)

2022 140,462

2023 415,981

2024 345,139

At December 31, 2020, the Water Utility reported its allocated share of the City of 
Rochester’s General Employees Plan’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience $15,407 $6,841                                      

Changes in actuarial assumptions -                       63,769

Net collective difference between projected and actual investment earnings 45,306                                         -

Changes in proportion 55,389 13,237

Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to the measurement date 80,909 -

Total $197,011 $83,847

NOTE 8: Pension Plans (continued)...
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The $80,909 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions  
resulting from Water Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date will  
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 
2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related  
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31: Pension Expense Amount

2021                ($84,452)

2022                 20,249

2023 52,596

2024                 43,862 

E. 	Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined 
using an individual entry-age normal actuarial cost method and the following actuarial 
assumptions: 

Inflation	 	 	 	 	 2.50% per year
Active Member Payroll Growth	 	 3.25% per year
Investment Rate of Return	 	 7.50% 

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active 
members, retirees, survivors, and disabilitants for all plans were based on RP-2014 
tables for males or females, as appropriate, with slight adjustments to fit PERA’s 
experience. Cost of living benefit increases after retirement for retirees are assumed 
to be 1.25% per year for the General Employees Plan.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results 
of actuarial experience studies. The most recent four-year experience study in the 
General Employees Plan was completed in 2019. The assumption changes were adopted 
by the Board and become effective with the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions occurred in 2020:

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:
•	 The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%. 
•	 The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%. 
•	 Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 
2019 experience study. The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25% less 
than previous rates.

•	 Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 
experience study. The changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and 
slightly fewer Rule of 90 and early retirements. 

•	 Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 
2019 experience study. The new rates are based on service and are generally lower 
than the previous rates for years 2-5 and slightly higher thereafter. 

NOTE 8: Pension Plans (continued)...
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•	 Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 
experience study. The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for 
males and females. 

•	 The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed 
from the RP-2014 table to the Pub-2010 General Mortality table, with adjustments. 
The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 
disabled annuitant mortality table to the PUB-2010 General/Teacher disabled 
annuitant mortality table, with adjustments. 

•	 The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019. 
•	 The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for 

females to one year older.
•	 The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & 
Survivor option changed from 35% to 45%. The assumed number of married 
female new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option changed from  
15% to 30%. The corresponding number of married new retirees electing the  
Life annuity option was adjusted accordingly.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
•	 Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the 
period July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was 
eliminated for privatizations occurring after June 30, 2020.

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an 
analysis of the reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of 
return using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future 
rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best 
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return

Domestic Stocks 35.5% 5.10%

International Stocks 17.5% 5.30%

Bonds (Fixed Income) 20.0% 0.75%

Alternative Assets (Private Markets) 25.0% 5.90%

Cash Equivalents  2.0% 0.00%

Total 100.0%

F. 	Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2020 was 7.5%. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members and employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota 
Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net position of the General 
Employees Fund was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments 
to determine the total pension liability. 

NOTE 8: Pension Plans (continued)...
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G. 	Pension Liability Sensitivity 
The following presents the Electric Utility’s and Water Utility’s allocated shares of 
the City of Rochester’s net pension liability for the General Employees Fund plan, 
calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well 
as what each utility’s allocated share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower or one percentage point 
higher than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease in  
Discount Rate (6.5%)

Current  
Discount Rate (7.5%)

1% Increase in  
Discount Rate (8.5%)

Electric Utility’s allocated share of the  
General Employees Fund net pension liability: $22,894,488 $14,285,386 $7,183,543

Water Utility’s allocated share of the  
General Employees Fund net pension liability: $2,897,549 $1,807,972 $909,156

H. 	Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
a separately-issued PERA financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at 
www.mnpera.org.

I. 	O ther Pension Plans 
The Utilities had maintained an unqualified supplemental pension plan. The plan 
was unfunded and was discontinued in 1968. Funds have been deposited with a plan 
administrator to fund the estimated benefits due under the plan. The pension reserve 
deposit as of December 31, 2020 was $29,842. 

J.	 Defined Contribution Plan (457 Plan) 
The City of Rochester offers a 457 plan (Plan) to all eligible employees who elect 
to make contributions to the Plan. The City intends to maintain the Plan as an 
eligible deferred compensation plan within the meaning of section 457(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. Participation in the Plan is voluntary and not a requirement 
of employees. The Plan is participant-directed and available to all City of Rochester 
employees which permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years.  
The City of Rochester does not provide contributions to the Plan. The City contracts 
with two deferred compensation plan vendors to offer retirement plan benefits.  
These vendors are Empower Retirement and ICMA-RC.

NOTE 8: Pension Plans (continued)...
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NOTE 9: Risk Management
The Utilities are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or 
destruction of assets, errors and omissions. These risks are covered through the purchase 
of commercial insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not exceeded the 
commercial liability in any of the past three years. There were no significant reductions in 
coverage compared to the prior year.

The City of Rochester has established a self-insurance program for group health coverage  
and workers’ compensation. Rochester Public Utilities participates in this self-insurance 
program. The group health program is limited to losses of $315,000 per claim with a variable 
annual aggregate, and the 2020 workers’ compensation coverage is limited to $500,000  
per occurrence, both through the use of stop-loss policies. The City recognizes a liability  
on individual claims when a loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. 
In addition, the City recognizes an estimated liability on unreported claims that are incurred 
but not yet reported. Additional details regarding the self-insurance program are disclosed 
in the notes to the City of Rochester’s basic financial statements included in the City’s 2020 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

NOTE 10: Accounting for the Effects of Rate Regulation
The Utilities are subject to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 10, 1989 FASB and 
AICPA Pronouncements. This statement recognizes the economic ability of regulators, through 
the rate-making process, to create future economic benefits and obligations affecting  
rate-regulated entities. Accordingly, the Utilities record these future economic benefits  
and obligations as regulatory assets and deferred inflows of resources, respectively.

Regulatory assets represent probable future revenues associated with previously incurred 
costs that are expected to be recovered from customers. Deferred inflows of resources 
represent probable future reductions in revenues associated with amounts that are expected 
to be refunded to customers through the rate-making process.

In order for a rate-regulated entity to continue to apply the provisions of GASB Statement  
No. 62, it must continue to meet the following three criteria:

1.	 The entities’ rates for regulated services provided to its customers must be established 
by an independent third-party regulator or its own governing board empowered by a 
statute to establish rates that bind customers;

2.	 The regulated rates must be designed to recover the specific entities’ costs of providing 
the regulated services;

3.	 In view of the demand for the regulated services and the level of competition, it is 
reasonable to assume that rates set at levels that will recover the entities’ costs can  
be charged to and collected from customers.

Based upon the Utilities’ management evaluation of the three criteria discussed above in 
relation to its operations, and the effect of competition on its ability to recover its costs,  
the Utilities believe that GASB Statement No. 62 continues to apply.
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NOTE 11: Commitments and Contingencies

Resource Management Agreement
The Electric Utility has a Resource Management Agreement with The Energy Authority, Inc. as 
its market participant in the Midcontinent Independent System Operator energy and operating 
reserves market for the Cascade Creek combustion turbines and Westside Energy Station 
reciprocating engines. 

Service Territory Settlements
Under settlement agreements with People’s Energy Cooperative (PEC), the Electric Utility is 
required to make payments to PEC related to the acquisitions of certain electric service rights 
from PEC. The payment is based on kilowatt hours (kWh) sold in acquired areas and varies by 
each settlement agreement. The kWh compensation rate ranges from 14.61 mills (tenths of a 
cent) per kWh to 26.38 mills per kWh. These commitments expire over various periods with a 
maximum term of ten years for each acquisition. Costs are recognized under these agreements 
as service is provided and are recorded as a regulatory asset for utility rate-making purposes 
under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62 and amortized over forty years.

Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Agency
The Electric Utility is a voting member of the Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Agency 
(SMMPA). The Utility has entered into a power purchase contract with SMMPA, whereby SMMPA 
will provide all Utility power requirements up to 216 megawatts, the contract rate of delivery. 
This contract expires in the year 2030. In 1999, the Utility and SMMPA agreed to a contract 
rate of delivery (CROD) that began in 2000. The CROD caps the amount of power SMMPA must 
supply to the Utility under the power purchase contract. The Utility is responsible for acquiring 
its power needs above the CROD. The Utility purchased 1,149,203,068 kilowatt hours totaling 
$84,591,296 from SMMPA during the year ended December 31, 2020. 

In October of 2020, RPU recorded as operating revenue a $4,267,058 distribution of general 
operating reserves from Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Agency. The payment was 
received in January 2021.

The Utility leases a portion of its electrical transmission system, known as the North Loop, to 
SMMPA under a non-cancelable operating lease through the year 2030. The Utility is responsible 
for all operating and maintenance costs. The Utility received a lump sum payment of $1,500,000 
in 1989 and annual lease revenues of $36,420 are being recognized ratably over the lease term.

Central Minnesota Municipal Power Agency
The Electric Utility has an agreement with Central Minnesota Municipal Power Agency (CMMPA) 
for the purchase of capacity. The remaining contract quantities and prices are as follows:

Planning Year Megawatts (per month) Contract Price ($ per MW) Purchase Price 

June 1, 2020-May 31, 2021 11 $3,400 $448,800
June 1, 2021-May 31, 2022 11 $4,000 $528,000
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Silver Lake Dam Modification Project
The RPU Board approved a contribution of $1.24 million towards the Silver Lake Dam Modification 
Project, contingent on the final project resulting in the removal of the existing dam with  
no future capital or maintenance expense to RPU ratepayers. The proposed modifications 
would improve safety and environmental features, and provide community enhancements  
and recreational opportunities. 

Open Construction Contracts and Other Significant Commitments
The Utilities have several active projects and agreements as of December 31, 2020. At year end, 
the Utilities’ significant commitments are as follows:

Electric Projects Spent-to-Date Remaining Commitment

Cayenta Implementation $1,683,636  $55,819 
Substation Projects  513,812  1,233,126 
Stock Materials & Tools  74,903  1,898,387 

Water Projects Spent-to-Date Remaining Commitment

Water Comprehensive Plan  $51,592  $16,908 
Well Design and Construction  14,006  276,720 

Legal Matters
The Electric Utility was engaged in an administrative hearing before the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) involving the recovery of RPU’s Annual Transmission Revenue 
Requirement from transmission customers in the Midcontinent Independent System Operator, 
Inc. (MISO) region. In April 2020, the FERC affirmed the recovery of RPU’s ATRR from transmission 
customers in the MISO region. This hearing did not involve a claim or assessment against RPU. 
The window for appeal of the FERC decision expired in June 2020 and there is no expectation  
of further litigation in this matter having a materially adverse impact on the financial position  
of the Electric Utility.

Claims and Judgments
From time to time, the Utilities are party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. 
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion  
of management and the Utilities’ attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims  
or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Utilities’ financial position or results  
of operations.

NOTE 11: Commitments and Contingencies (continued)...
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NOTE 12: Subsequent Events

On January 26, 2021, the RPU Board of Directors approved a new Microsoft Enterprise License 
renewal agreement between the RPU Electric Utility and SHI International Corp. for $636,350. 
This is for a three-year term effective March 1, 2021 through February 28, 2024.

On February 10, 2021, RPU closed on the Series 2013B Bond refunding. The City offered 
$37,170,000 Taxable Electric Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021A in a competitive  
bid managed through our financial advisor, Baker Tilly. The proceeds from the sale will be  
used to pay issuance costs, the outstanding 2013B Bonds when they become callable on 
December 1, 2023, and fund the required debt service reserve. The refunding resulted in an 
effective interest rate of 1.995% including issuance costs and a present value savings of 
$7,930,704 after deducting the remaining interest costs of the 2013B Bonds until December 1, 
2023. The net gain is $6,641,823, or approximately $332,000 per year for the remaining twenty 
years the 2021A Bonds will be outstanding.

On February 23, 2021, the RPU Electric Utility closed on 134.84 acres of land to be used to 
construct a 10-megawatt solar farm. The total amount of the land purchase was $1,713,120.

On February 23, 2021, the RPU Board of Directors approved a contract between the RPU Electric 
Utility and Southern States, LLC for $221,194 for vertical break disconnect switches for the new 
Marion Road Substation.

On February 23, 2021, the RPU Board of Directors approved a contract between the RPU Electric 
Utility and GE Grid Solutions, LLC for $262,500 for circuit breakers for the new Marion Road 
Substation.

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated 
and voluntary closing of businesses, as well as shelter in place orders for citizens. While there 
has been a financial impact, RPU expects and plans for a recovery during 2021. The related 
financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. 

In preparing these financial statements, Rochester Public Utilities has evaluated events and 
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through March 31, 2021, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Required Supplementary Information 
(unaudited)

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2020

The Schedule of Employer Contributions shows the employer’s required annual contributions 
from the annual actuarial valuation, compared with the actual contributions remitted over the 
past ten years.

Schedule of Rochester Public Utilities – Electric Utility Contributions 
Public Employees General Employees Retirement Fund 
Required Supplementary Information (Last Ten Years*)

Fiscal Year Ending 
(for the Financial 
Reporting Period)

Statutorily Required 
Contribution  

(a)

Contributions in 
Relation to the 

Statutorily Required 
Contribution 

(b)

Contribution  
Deficiency (Excess) 

(a-b)

Covered
Payroll  

(d)

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 

(b/d)

December 31, 2015 $1,053,611 $1,053,611 $ - $14,048,147 7.5%

December 31, 2016 $1,047,623 $1,047,623 $ - $13,968,307 7.5%

December 31, 2017 $1,123,064 $1,123,064 $ - $14,974,187 7.5%

December 31, 2018 $1,189,801 $1,189,801 $ - $15,864,013 7.5%

December 31, 2019 $1,258,692 $1,258,692 $ - $16,782,560 7.5%

December 31, 2020 $1,276,070 $1,276,070 $ - $17,014,267 7.5%

*This schedule is presented prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

Schedule of Rochester Public Utilities – Water Utility Contributions 
Public Employees General Employees Retirement Fund 
Required Supplementary Information (Last Ten Years*)

Fiscal Year Ending 
(for the Financial 
Reporting Period)

Statutorily Required 
Contribution  

(a)

Contributions in 
Relation to the 

Statutorily Required 
Contribution 

(b)

Contribution  
Deficiency (Excess) 

(a-b)

Covered
Payroll  

(d)

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 

(b/d)

December 31, 2015 $125,932 $125,932 $ - $1,679,093 7.5%

December 31, 2016 $125,295 $125,295 $ - $1,670,600 7.5%

December 31, 2017 $131,642 $131,642 $ - $1,755,227 7.5%

December 31, 2018 $138,727 $138,727 $ - $1,849,693 7.5%

December 31, 2019 $157,836 $157,836 $ - $2,104,480 7.5%

December 31, 2020 $161,082 $161,082 $ - $2,147,760 7.5%

*This schedule is presented prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report and accompanying Note to the Required Supplementary Information.
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Schedule of Rochester Public Utilities – Electric Utility Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
Public Employees General Employees Retirement Fund 
Required Supplementary Information (Last Ten Years*)

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
(for the  

Measurement 
Period)

City of Rochester’s 
Proportion  

(Percentage) of  
Net Pension  

Liability (Asset)

RPU Electric  
Utility’s Allocated 
Share (Amount)  

of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

(a)

RPU Electric  
Utility’s  

Covered Payroll 
(b)

RPU Electric  
Utility’s Allocated Share of the 
Net Pension Liability (Asset)  

as a Percentage of its  
Covered Payroll 

(a/b)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position as 
a Percentage of 

the Total Pension 
Liability

June 30, 2015 0.7410% $11,722,132 $13,004,761 90.14% 78.19%

June 30, 2016 0.7271% $17,900,174 $13,124,826 136.38% 68.91%

June 30, 2017 0.7701% $15,060,666 $13,811,891 109.04% 75.90%

June 30, 2018 0.7471% $12,826,294 $14,829,552 86.49% 79.53%

June 30, 2019 0.7473% $12,584,021 $15,488,263 81.25% 80.23%

June 30, 2020 0.7818% $14,285,386 $16,299,411 87.64% 79.06%

*This schedule is presented prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Schedule of Rochester Public Utilities – Water Utility Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
Public Employees General Employees Retirement Fund 
Required Supplementary Information (Last Ten Years*)

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
(for the  

Measurement 
Period)

City of Rochester’s 
Proportion  

(Percentage) of  
Net Pension  

Liability (Asset)

RPU Water  
Utility’s Allocated 
Share (Amount)  

of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

(a)

RPU Water  
Utility’s  

Covered Payroll 
(b)

RPU Water  
Utility’s Allocated Share of the 
Net Pension Liability (Asset)  

as a Percentage of its  
Covered Payroll 

(a/b)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position as 
a Percentage of 

the Total Pension 
Liability

June 30, 2015 0.7410% $1,400,562 $1,512,163 92.62% 78.19%

June 30, 2016 0.7271% $2,105,210 $1,582,656 133.02% 68.91%

June 30, 2017 0.7701% $1,756,779 $1,646,190 106.72% 75.90%

June 30, 2018 0.7471% $1,494,729 $1,696,245 88.12% 79.53%

June 30, 2019 0.7473% $1,561,107 $1,926,372 81.04% 80.23%

June 30, 2020 0.7818% $1,807,972 $2,044,475 88.43% 79.06%

*This schedule is presented prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Required Supplementary Information (continued)...

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report and accompanying Note to the Required Supplementary Information.
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Note to the Required  
Supplementary Information (unaudited)

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2020

NOTE 1: General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF) administered by 
the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA)

The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year end that  
occurred within the fiscal year. The City of Rochester is required to present the last ten fiscal years 
of data; however, accounting standards allow the presentation of as many year as are available 
until ten fiscal years are presented.

There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in the GERF. 

2020 Changes: 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

•	 The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%.

•	 The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%.

•	 Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019  
experience study. The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25% less than  
previous rates.

•	 Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019  
experience study. The changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and 
slightly fewer Rule of 90 and early retirements.

•	 Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019  
experience study. The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than  
the previous rates for years 2-5 and slightly higher thereafter.

•	 Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019  
experience study. The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for  
males and females.

•	 The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from  
the RP-2014 table to the Pub-2010 General Mortality table, with adjustments. The base 
mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 disabled  
annuitant mortality table to the PUB-2010 General/Teacher disabled annuitant  
mortality table, with adjustments.

•	 The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019.

•	 The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females  
to one year older.

•	 The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor 
option changed from 35% to 45%. The assumed number of married female new retirees 
electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option changed from 15% to 30%. The corresponding 
number of married new retirees electing the Life annuity option was adjusted  
accordingly. 

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Changes in Plan Provisions:
•	 Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the period  
July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was eliminated 
for privatizations occurring after June 30, 2020. 

2019 Changes: 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

•	 The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
•	 The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from 
$31.0 million to $21.0 million per year. The State’s special funding contribution was 
changed prospectively, requiring $16.0 million due per year through 2031.

2018 Changes: 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

•	 The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017. 

•	 The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.0% per year through 2044 and  
2.5% per year thereafter to 1.25% per year.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
•	 The augmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year 

period starting July 1, 2019, resulting in actuarial equivalence after June 30, 2024. 

•	 Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.0% to 3.0%, beginning  
July 1, 2018. 

•	 Deferred augmentation was changed to 0.0%, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation 
that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.

•	 Contribution stabilizer provisions were repealed. 

•	 Postretirement benefit increases were changed from 1.0% per year with a provision  
to increase to 2.5% upon attainment of 90.0% funding ratio to 50.0% of the Social  
Security Cost of Living Adjustment, not less than 1.0% and not more than 1.5%,  
beginning January 1, 2019. 

•	 For retirements on or after January 1, 2024, the first benefit increase is delayed until the 
retiree reaches normal retirement age; does not apply to Rule of 90 retirees, disability 
benefit recipients, or survivors. 

•	 Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest  
assumptions.

Note to the Required Supplementary Information (continued)...

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Note to the Required Supplementary Information (continued)...

2017 Changes: 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

•	 The combined service annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.8% for active members 
and 60.0% for vested and nonvested deferred members. The revised CSA loads are now 
0.0% for active member liability, 15.0% for vested deferred member liability and 3.0%  
for nonvested deferred member liability.

•	 The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year  
for all years to 1.0% per year through 2044 and 2.5% per year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
•	 The State’s contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund equals 
$16,000,000 in 2017 and 2018, and $6,000,000 thereafter.

•	 The Employer Supplemental Contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund 
changed from $21,000,000 to $31,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031. The state’s 
contribution changed from $16,000,000 to $6,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031. 

2016 Changes: 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

•	 The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year 
through 2035 and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year for all years. 

•	 The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. The single discount 
rate was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%.

•	 Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study dated June 30, 
2015. The assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased 
by 0.25% to 3.25% for payroll growth and 2.5% for inflation.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
•	 There have been no changes since the prior valuation. 

2015 Changes: 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

•	 The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year 
through 2030 and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year through 2035 and 2.5%  
per year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
•	 On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the 
General Employees Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and 
increased the fiduciary plan net position by $892 million. Upon consolidation, state and 
employer contributions were revised; the State’s contribution of $6 million, which meets 
the special funding situation definition, is due September 2015. 

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL STATISTICS (unaudited)

ELECTRIC
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2010

RETAIL CUSTOMERS: (ten years ago)

Residential  52,531  51,344  50,353  49,323  48,426  43,614 

Industrial / Commercial  5,099  5,034  4,978  4,906  4,864  4,601 

Other 4 4 4 4 4 4

Total Retail Customers 57,634 56,382 55,335 54,233 53,294 48,219

RETAIL SALES:  (mWh)   

Residential  373,658  353,018  362,234  339,825  346,974  345,076 

Industrial / Commercial 740,236 807,006 828,314 833,337 848,262 884,436

Other 14,074 14,434 14,530 14,686 14,770 15,310

Total Retail Sales (mWh)  1,127,968  1,174,458  1,205,078  1,187,848  1,210,006  1,244,822 

RETAIL REVENUE:

Residential $55,698,487 $53,611,935 $53,451,092 $49,179,998 $46,886,573 $41,706,952 

Industrial / Commercial 83,472,364 91,871,263 93,347,616 91,660,540 87,393,870 81,119,437

Other 4,804,095 2,456,914 5,115,153 5,938,292 7,730,497 5,154,490

Total Retail Revenue $143,974,946 $147,940,112 $151,913,861 $146,778,830 $142,010,940 $127,980,879 

Steam Sales (MLBs)  498,039  362,699  330,033  439,864  453,699  453,280 

Steam Revenues $4,811,514 $3,809,740 $4,322,168 $4,418,805 $4,038,836 $5,555,370 

Annual Peak (Megawatts) 265.3 283.8 277.1 266.2 276.2 278.3 

Total mWh Generated 65,866 74,651 112,657 38,968 55,396 44,640

Total mWh Purchased 1,152,434 1,204,808 1,228,695 1,216,551 1,239,832 1,260,920

Year End Restricted/ 
Unrestricted Cash & Investment Balance $104,543,197 $102,858,897 $92,950,417 $94,046,678 $46,453,195 $44,813,640 

WATER
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2010

RETAIL CUSTOMERS: (ten years ago)

Residential 37,238 36,860 36,531 36,134 35,736 33,547

Industrial / Commercial 3,631 3,607 3,668 3,614 3,578 3,404

Total Retail Customers 40,869 40,467 40,199 39,748 39,314 36,951

RETAIL SALES:  (ccf)

Residential 2,921,681 2,521,799 2,657,659 2,713,284 2,654,992 2,817,200

Industrial / Commercial 2,672,310 2,808,574 2,960,502 3,061,222 3,073,274 2,800,228

Total Retail Sales (ccf) 5,593,991 5,330,373 5,618,161 5,774,506 5,728,266 5,617,428

RETAIL REVENUE:

Residential $6,433,325 $5,786,153 $5,549,146 $5,189,102 $4,768,468 $4,170,552 

Industrial / Commercial 3,641,258 3,612,834 3,523,158 3,409,516 3,236,888 2,672,797

Public Fire Protection 590,779 560,258 528,273 522,724 513,738 545,114

Total Retail Revenue $10,665,362 $9,959,245 $9,600,577 $9,121,342 $8,519,094 $7,388,463 

Total Pumped (billion gallons) 4.4 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.5 4.5 

Year End Restricted/ 
Unrestricted Cash & Investment Balance $11,975,432 $10,529,197 $9,334,809 $7,122,783 $5,705,448 $6,921,137 
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NRRI Vision:
Discover the Economy of the Future

Annual Report
Fiscal Year 2021 | July 01, 2020–June 01, 2021
Natural Resources Research Institute
University of Minnesota Duluth

Main: (800) 234-0054 | Website: www.nrri.umn.edu | Email: nrriinfo@d.umn.edu

NRRI Duluth | 5013 Miller Trunk Highway | Duluth, MN 55811 | (218) 788-2694

NRRI Coleraine | One Gayley Ave / PO Box 188 | Coleraine, MN 55722 | (218) 667-4201
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Focused on the Future
Greetings from Rolf Weberg, Executive Director, NRRI

If this past year has taught us anything, we’ve learned that change and adaptation
is the new standard. Despite the continuing challenges posed by the effects of the
pandemic, NRRI has continued to adjust and deliver with patience, dedication and
outstanding teamwork. But we haven’t done it alone. We have received critical help
and support from our Advisory Board, state legislators and agencies, our partners
and collaborators, the University of Minnesota and our fellow citizens. Thank you.

Change has continued across our University community as well. Two of our System leaders and
supporters have left for new challenges and we welcome new leadership. NRRI now reports through
Interim Executive Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs, Amy Hietapelto, former UMD dean of the Labovitz
School of Business and Economics and long-time supporter of NRRI’s mission. The University’s Vice
President for Research also has interim leadership under Michael Oakes of the University’s School of
Public Health. We are pleased that Michael’s guiding principles – excellence, integrity, responsiveness
and impact – are fully embraced by NRRI’s core values. We look forward to furthering our role under their
leadership as a System asset within the University’s research enterprise.

Strategic Initiatives

Last year, as we rolled out our 2020-2025 Strategic Plan, we introduced our five research platforms – our
key areas of recognized expertise. This year, we are pleased to introduce three strategic initiatives – focal
points of our integrated research programs that will deliver real impacts to Minnesota and the region:

1. Ecosystems and Water Resource Management
2. Forestry, Functional Biochar and Carbon Materials
3. Iron and Minerals of the Future

Superimposed upon these is the drive to address the global climate crisis by reducing our carbon footprint
in all that we do to maintain our living ecosystems while remaining economically competitive. This focus
has brought NRRI new opportunities on the federal level to add our expertise in creating solutions. We will
look forward to sharing the results of this work.

Continuous Improvement

Finally, in the spirit of continuous improvement, NRRI has embraced the challenge of assessing our
organization based on diversity, equity and inclusion principles. This will be a long-standing effort to
create a welcoming and supportive environment for all employees, students, partners and collaborators
and I look forward to working with our team in these efforts.

NRRI continues to be a busy and exciting place. I hope that you enjoy this annual report and invite you to
share your questions and comments with us. We are your Natural Resources Research Institute.

Stay healthy and safe. Thank you for your support,

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
2
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FY2021 By the Numbers

People and Safety

● 6 Near Miss
● 3 Injury/Illness
● 2 Hazards
● 11 total incidents

Human Resources

● 11 Full time
● 15 Temp/casuals
● 15 student workers

○ 10 Grad Students
○ 5 Undergrad Students

Postdoc researcher Matthew Berens works on the Sediment Surveillance Survey funded by the U.S. EPA to identify
legacy and emerging contaminants in the Great Lakes.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
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Innovation

● 6 Invention Disclosures
● 1 New Commercial Licenses
● 1 Patent Filed
● 2 Patents Issued
● 1 Business Startup

Delivery

● 76 Industry Service Contracts
● 22 Journal Articles
● 34 Technical Reports
● 177 Total Research projects in FY21
● 82 Sponsored Research Projects
● 62 External Sales Contracts

Engagement

● 9 Estimated average number of Zoom meetings per week, per person
● 198 Virtual Conferences & Workshops
● 45 Public Service, Committees
● 9 MnDRIVE Travel Grants Awarded

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
4
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Operating Budget

● Total funding $15.3M
● University Funding 18%
● PUTF Funding 22%
● Contracts and Grants 31%
● State Funding 29%

External Contracts and Grants

● Federal 24%
● State 41%
● Industry 27%
● Other 8%

Elizabeth Alexson aboard the EPA’s Research vessel, Lake Guardian, before it launched in the Spring, 2021. Alexson
is monitoring the critters at the bottom of the food chain in the Great Lakes.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
5

81

Item 3.

http://www.nrri.umn.edu


State Funded Research
Cross-platform research projects funded by the Legislative-Citizen Commission on Minnesota
Resources (LCCMR):

● Emerald Ash Borer and Black Ash: Maintaining Forests and Benefits; $700,000
● Testing Effectiveness of Aquatic Invasive Species Removal Methods; $110,000
● Bobcat and Fisher Habitat Use and Interactions;  $400,000
● Conserving Black Terns and Forster's Terns in Minnesota; $198,000
● Lignin-Coated Fertilizers for Phosphate Control;  $250,000

2021 Legislative LCCMR Appropriations:

● Minerals and Water: Demonstration of Three Sulfate Reduction Technology
Applications;$300,000; Next-Generation Technologies and New Iron Products;
$450,000.

● Forest & Bioeconomy: Expansion of Forest Optimization Tool $500,000; Development of
Biochar Capability $380,000.

2021 Legislative Appropriation
One-time Drop from Higher Education Budget: $500,000 for infrastructure and research support.

Thanks for supporting our research, Minnesota!

Researchers Cally Hunt and Matt Young inspect and document charred ash wood to produce biochars from
beetle-killed trees.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
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FY2021 Research Impacts and Accomplishments
We are highlighting the work from each of our platforms over the past year. NRRI’s
research platforms address Minnesota’s soil, forest, water and mineral resources.

Applied Ecology and Resource Management

Seeking to understand the world we live in and how to minimize our impacts

Major initiative: Climate change and water management

FY21 Accomplishments & Impacts:

● Received $2.33M from the EPA to support research teams that monitor Great Lakes
shorelines as part of the Coastal Wetlands Monitoring Program.

● Received a $3M grant to collect sediments and analyze contaminants throughout the
Great Lakes.

● Received $536,000 to evaluate shipboard ballast water treatment systems and
determine the impacts of non-native species introduced to the Great Lakes.

● NRRI and industry partner patent a first step invention that can lead to sulfate
remediation in water systems using altered peat material as a filtering medium.

● Investigating the potential of biochar for stormwater treatment and removal of chemical
pollutants.

● Pilot testing two low-cost sulfate remediation technologies to meet Minnesota’s sulfate
standards in deployable mobile units. One approach uses a unique chemical
precipitation and filtration process and the second employs a microbial bioreactor
followed by a sulfide capture step using regional mineral materials.

● Made major investment in trace analysis capabilities, including emerging contaminants
such as pesticides, flame retardants, plasticizers, solvents and musks.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
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Minerals and Metallurgy

Defining our mineral resources; demonstrating competitive and responsible use of
mineral resources

Major initiative: Minerals & Iron Ore of the Future

FY21 Accomplishments & Impacts:

● Received U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) funding of $2.1M to research Minnesota’s
iron products for expanded steel making markets.

● Received U.S.DOE Advanced Research Projects Agency-Energy (ARPA-E) funding for
“Making Cement at Ambient Temperature Using 55% Municipal Solid Waste Ash.”  NRRI
received $300,000 as a sub-awardee to project lead, Designs by Natural Processes,
Inc., in collaboration with Sandia National Laboratories.

● High Pressure Grinding Rolls technology was upgraded with industry partner Weir
Minerals. This led to four new clients in FY21 that are interested in improving the energy
efficiency of their operations.

● Upgraded Coleraine facilities, testing equipment and methods in response to growing
requests from Minnesota’s mining industry to perform new strategic research projects.

● Assisted startup company, Prairie River Minerals, to complete a pilot-scale test of their
dense medium separation technology which led to the construction of their first
industrial-scale demonstration plant near Coleraine, MN.

● NRRI and university collaborators received $322,250 from the Minnesota Department of
Transportation/Local Road Research Board for “Taconite as a lower cost alternative to
Calcined Bauxite for high friction surface treatment on low volume roads in Minnesota.”

● An award from the U.S. Geological Survey Earth Mapping Resource Initiative (Earth
MRI) program was made to a team of researchers from the Minnesota Geological
Survey, Department of Natural Resources and NRRI for completion of high resolution
aeromagnetic and radiometric geophysical surveys.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
8

84

Item 3.

https://www.nrri.umn.edu/natural-resources-research-institute/news/doe-grant-2021
https://www.nrri.umn.edu/natural-resources-research-institute/news/doe-grant-2021
https://www.nrri.umn.edu/natural-resources-research-institute/news/hpgr-0
https://www.nrri.umn.edu/natural-resources-research-institute/news/prairie-river-minerals
http://www.nrri.umn.edu


Materials and Bioeconomy

Developing new ideas to utilize our forest resources and organic waste streams

Major initiative: Functional Carbon Materials

FY21 Accomplishments & Impacts:

● More than six projects underway to understand the potential of biochar for
environmental remediation and as a new market for forest resources.

● Collaborating with Minnesota Forest Resources Council at the Cloquet Forestry
Center to demonstrate opportunities to convert fire hazard trees to biochar to
enhance forest regeneration success.

● Industrial scale demonstration projects are underway for multiple clients
interested in biomass-based product development for soil fertilization and other
unique agricultural, silvicultural and pharmaceutical applications.

● Collaborative research with the U.S. Forest Service shows the bridge
construction industry that building with wood can save time and money while
sequestering carbon.

● NRRI and Washington State University are working together to promote
innovations in cross-laminated strand veneer lumber using a heat treatment
process.

● NRRI helped social enterprise, Better Futures Minnesota, with a deconstruction
and materials resale project in Duluth. The program received a 2021
Environmental Initiative Award.

● Demonstrated better methods to make clean syngas from forest biomass for
renewable hydrogen, fuels and metal processing.

● Major investment in material characterization of advanced carbon products from
forest biomass, including BET and porosimetry surface characterization.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
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Data Collection and Delivery

Making complex data accessible and understandable to inform decision-makers

Major initiative: Minnesota Atlas expanded to a statewide resource

FY21 Accomplishments & Impacts:

● Minnesota Mammals website was upgraded to meet University usability
standards and to be more user-friendly.

● NRRI scientist published a book titled “Diatom Monographs, Monoraphid and
Naviculoid diatoms from the Coastal Laurentian Great Lakes" that includes 28
newly discovered species of diatom algae.

● Completed integrating multiple computer modeling to project 80 years of change
in Minnesota's forests to better understand how climate and management
decisions impact the ecosystem services they provide.

Commercialization Services

Providing expertise coupled with technical core competencies to drive innovation.

Major initiative: MN LaunchPad for entrepreneurs

FY21 Accomplishments & Impacts:

● Helped establish Launch Minnesota Northeast Minnesota entrepreneurial hub
called Innovate 218.

● Implemented Customer Relationship Management (CRM) tool for business and
industry engagement.

● Created standardized customer documentation: proposal, budget and statement
of qualifications for Business & Industry engagement.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
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Our Stakeholders and Partner Organizations
NRRI strives to align our capabilities to the goals of our state charter of fostering the
economic development of Minnesota’s natural resources in an environmentally sound
manner to promote private sector employment.

Agencies/Governmental Units:

● Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
● Minnesota Pollution Control Agency
● Minnesota Department of Transportation
● Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development
● Minnesota Tribal Governments
● U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
● U.S. Department of Energy
● U.S. Geological Survey
● U.S. Forest Service
● U.S. Department of Agriculture
● Transportation Research Board (part of the National Academies of Sciences,

Engineering, and Medicine)

Business & Industry:

● Iron and steel production
● Non-ferrous mining
● Iron ore secondary products
● Paving
● Emerging bioeconomy
● Water treatment and remediation
● Energy sector (biofuels, syngas, green hydrogen, storage)
● Building products
● Forest management
● Entrepreneurial efforts
● Economic Development Organizations

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
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ABOUT NRRI
As part of the University of Minnesota system research enterprise, NRRI employs over 140
scientists, engineers, technicians, staff and students in two industrial research facilities. Through
collaborative partnerships, we deliver the innovative tools and solutions needed to utilize and
sustain Minnesota’s valuable natural resources.

NRRI CHARTER
To foster the economic development of Minnesota’s natural resources in an environmentally
sound manner to promote private sector employment.
- Minnesota State Legislature, 1983

NRRI MISSION
Deliver integrated research solutions that value our resources, environment and economy for a
sustainable and resilient future.

NRRI VISION
Discover the economy of the future.

NRRI CORE VALUES

● Safety | Safety comes first in all that we do.

● Quality | There is no compromise on the quality of our work. We aim for top quality in
everything we do.

● Innovation | The key to our future is innovation. We actively embrace new ideas, tools,
approaches and partnerships.

● Integrity | Our integrity is the foundation of our public trust; We maintain an honest,
unbiased approach in all that we do. We enter all conversations and relationships with
respect for one another and the environment.

● Collaboration | We continually work to develop and nurture productive relationships.
It's how we get things done!

● Partnership | We strive to serve our partners and our stakeholders. We actively seek
the voice of our rights holders, stakeholders, clients and partners.

We’re Focused on the Future | www.nrri.umn.edu
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GRAND RAPIDS 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM: Review Financial Reporting 

PREPARED BY: Jean Lane, Business Services Manager 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Financial reporting is critical to monitoring the GRPU financial plan and budget.  Attached are 

some draft financial information and graphics.  This is only the beginning.  Financial reporting 

has some base principals and then needs to be designed specifically for the decision making of 

the governing body.   

Some discussion points to ponder:  

 What type of key performance indicators (KPIs) need to be analyzed 

 What to link statistical data to operations (Income Statement) 

 What to link capital expenditures to financial position (Balance Sheet) 

 

 

I welcome your thoughts and comments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Discussion and review of draft financial reporting. 
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Some key financial points for the EOY 2021 financial reporting: 

1. Electric utility is projecting a net loss 

a. July 26 storm costs were approximately $415,000 of which $332,479 was 

reimbursed through a MN Department of Homeland Security grant. 

b. Solar project cost over $400,000 of which $230,000 grant funds from IRRR and 

$45,000 was capitalized 

c. Increase in total revenues due to purchase power pass through to customer for 

increased cost of purchased power  

d. Increase in total expenses due to increase cost in purchased power  

2. Water utility operated at a net income 

3. Wastewater collection utility operated at a net income 

4. Wastewater Treatment utility operated at a net income 
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2021 2020 2021

YTD YTD Budget

ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

          REVENUES

               City Residential Sales $4,217,360.88 $4,035,745.59 $3,869,329.39

               City Commercial Sales 2,627,386.82 2,531,212.47 2,825,034.59

               City  - EVC Sales 1,162.06 118.80

               Rural Residential Sales 1,114,473.18 1,075,240.88 1,043,431.33

               Rural Commercial Sales 390,675.11 338,026.47 355,407.53

               City Demand and Energy 5,236,998.57 4,959,822.67 5,542,536.04

               Rural Demand and Energy 225,393.99 210,819.50 234,965.60

               City Industrial Sales 1,466,929.23 1,296,016.81 1,347,260.00

               City Load Management Sales 173,993.85 194,592.27 217,460.01

               Rural Load Management Sales 109,684.15 121,627.52 142,939.72

               Purchased Power Adjustment Passthru 2,401,455.03 400,952.76 621,226.87

               Other Services 61,567.69 60,075.28 60,378.06

              Grants 416,807.71 10,065.28 0.00

               Other Revenues 236,146.56 120,388.12 126,077.92

          TOTAL REVENUES 18,680,034.83$     15,354,704.42$     16,386,047.06$     

          EXPENSES

               Purchased Power 13,611,142.91$      11,069,792.18$      11,724,362.60$      

               Operating 872,564.80 483,271.55 552,707.48

               Maintenance 398,249.08             425,687.74             512,788.96             

               Customer 436,017.82             297,956.54             435,740.64             

               Conservation 186,314.50             150,960.79             114,200.04             

               Admin & General 1,039,442.14          1,028,585.48          1,104,071.60          

               Depreciation 915,431.73             1,107,891.65          1,058,088.00          

               PILOT 882,288.60 873,536.77 872,200.00             

               Solar Garden 393,640.13             -                           -                           

               Unusual & Extraordinary 386,810.23             -                           -                           

        TOTAL EXPENSES 19,121,901.94$     15,437,682.70$     16,374,159.32$     

           NET INCOME (LOSS) (441,867.11)$         (82,978.28)$           11,887.74$            
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2021 2020 2021

YTD YTD Budget

 WASTEWATER COLLECTION DEPARTMENT

        REVENUES

                Collections - City Residential $765,394.05 $733,023.05 $735,000.00

                Collections- City Commercial 787,523.28 737,707.56 780,642.50

                Collections- Rural Residential 763.20 811.20 840.00

                Collections - Rural Commercial 3,639.12 3,978.15 3,840.00

                Collections - Public Authority 133,262.20 140,931.40 134,300.00

                Septage Hauler - Regular Fees 114,482.26 129,671.86 93,800.00

                Septage Hauler - Holding Tank Fee 41,449.77 24,858.95 15,310.00

                Other 16,536.55 22,776.50 9,610.00

                Gain on Propety Disposition 27,500.00 0.00 0.00

          TOTAL REVENUES 1,890,550.43$     1,793,758.67$     1,773,342.50$     

          EXPENSES

                Operations 100,239.50$         90,641.40$           77,277.04$           

                Maintenance 184,725.71           127,366.21           144,779.76           

                Customer 96,180.61             65,153.78             89,718.60             

                Admin & Genl 287,136.17           209,341.31           263,042.74           

                Domestic Plant 88,785.79             60,609.90             79,017.99             

                Domestic Secondary 455,579.00           423,425.33           418,868.22           

                Domestic Service Center 8,659.19               9,992.07               10,073.48             

                Domestic Sludge Disposal 50,293.08             50,293.08             -                         

                Depreciation 237,232.88           190,535.18           182,224.00           

                Interest Expense 11,885.75             12,570.38             11,457.00             

          TOTAL EXPENSES 1,520,717.68$     1,239,928.64$     1,276,458.83$     

          NET INCOME (LOSS) 369,832.75$        553,830.03$        496,883.67$        
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2021 2020 2021

YTD YTD Budget

 WATER DEPARTMENT

          REVENUES

               City Water Residential Sales $614,459.01 $619,545.14 $622,372.50

               City Water Commercial Sales 596,505.19 524,541.82 548,700.00

               City Multi-Family Sales 247,105.20 247,837.05 238,032.00

               City Industrial Sales 102,991.90 98,082.08 87,514.00

               City Industrial Sales - Internal 72,034.84 41,856.86 32,334.92

               Public Authorities Water Sales 37,911.76 35,253.12 31,950.00

               Other 233,643.35 218,485.10 242,744.04

         TOTAL REVNEUES $1,904,651.25 $1,785,601.17 $1,803,647.46

            EXPENSES

                   Production Operations 497,313.83$         456,984.59$         441,809.98$         

                  Production Maintenance 94,332.75             86,718.92             96,230.00             

                  Distribution Operations 218,492.09           152,176.14           122,362.96           

                  Distribution Maintenance 166,158.05           154,170.32           226,560.00           

                  Customer 122,930.93           88,417.48             120,031.56           

                  Admin & General 381,474.75           320,733.90           368,153.23           

                  Depreciation 332,316.19           326,800.69           321,374.00           

                  Interest Exp 23,818.63             25,761.58             23,982.00             

          TOTAL EXPENSES 1,836,837.22$     1,611,763.62$     1,720,503.73$     

          NET INCOOME (LOSS) 67,814.03$          173,837.55$        83,143.73$          
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2021 2020 2021

YTD YTD Budget

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

      REVENUES

               Screen House $251,313.34 $266,991.11 $254,114.46

              Primary Plant II Waste Treatment 1,274,014.25 1,778,803.18 1,331,567.42

              Sludge Disposal 507,039.14 378,955.36 502,695.47

              WWTP Service Center Building 114,300.14 132,751.94 133,832.74

              Secondary Waste Treatment 1,207,757.08 1,034,087.36 997,709.24

              Grants 610.00                  445,671.73           -                         

              Contributions City of GR -                         75,000.00             -                         

              Contributions - Customer 32,686.88             339,821.69           -                         

              Demand Payments 2,160,009.42        2,344,271.98        -                         

       TOTAL REVENUES 5,547,730.25$     6,796,354.35$     3,219,919.33$     

        EXPENSES

              Screen House 253,189.84           265,114.61           254,114.46           

              Primary Plant II 1,274,014.25        1,778,803.18        1,331,567.54        

              Sludge Disposal 557,332.22           429,248.44           502,695.47           

              Service Center Bldg 122,959.33           142,744.01           143,906.22           

              Secondary Trmt 1,663,336.08        1,457,512.69        1,416,577.46        

              Domestic - Secondary Plant (455,579.00)          (423,425.33)          (418,868.22)          

              Domestic - Service Center Bldg (8,659.19)              (9,992.07)              (10,073.48)            

              Domestic - Sludge Disposal (50,293.08)            (50,293.08)            -                         

              Depreciation 1,588,891.95        1,596,768.60        1,600,000.00        

              Other 1,253.80               1,671.75               -                         

              Interest Expense 479,166.81           544,738.23           -                         

        TOTAL EXPENSES 5,425,613.01$      5,732,891.03$      4,819,919.45$      

        NET INCOME (LOSS) 122,117.24$         1,063,463.32$      (1,600,000.12)$     
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GRAND RAPIDS 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM: Review of draft financial planning and budget policy 

PREPARED BY: Jean Lane, Business Services Manager 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Government should formally adopted financial policies.  Financial policies are central to a 

strategic, long-term approach to financial management.  Written financial policies assist the 

government to: 

 Promote stability and continuity. 
 Prevent the need to re-invent responses to recurring issues. 
 Clarify how GRPU will manage its resources to provide the best value to customers and 

community. 
 Promote a shared understanding of how GRPU will develop its financial practices. 
 Define limits on the actions staff may take. 
 Provide boundaries within which staff can innovate in order to accomplish the GRPU 

strategic plan. 
 Support good bond ratings. 
 Promote long-term thinking. 
 Identify important risks to financial conditions and how to mitigate the risks. 

 

The attached financial planning and budget policy was drafted with review of several 

government units and special distributions policies.  The Government Finance Officers 

Association has great resources which I utilized in the development of the draft policy.  I 

attempted to include common and recurring financial planning and budgeting concepts, yet 

tailored this policy to reflect the values and goals of GRPU. 

I am looking forward to a good discussion with the Commission. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Review the attached draft financial planning and budget policy. 
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PURPOSE:  
The Commission affirms the importance of financial planning and budgeting and sets forth its expectations for 
the General Manager (GM) in terms of the effective development, implementation, monitoring, updating, and 
reporting of a financial plan and budget connected to the Commission’s approved strategic plan. 
 
POLICY:  
The General Manager will propose for Commission approval a financial plan and budget that supports the 
Strategic Plan and provides credible projections of expenses and revenues (in major categories), reserve fund 
balances, and key financial ratios annually.  The GM will propose a balanced budget where revenues exceeding 
expenses is required.  Prior year’s revenues or cash reserves may be used to meet this requirement, provided 
that all utilities cash targets meet or exceed internal goals, bond or any legal requirements.   The GM will 
monitor and report the financial plan and budget to the Commission. 
 
The basis of budgeting is identical to the basis of accounting and financial reporting used in the audited financial 
statements for all enterprise funds. The principles set forth as the basis of accounting are strictly observed in the 
budgeting process. All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP).   Each enterprise fund service activities will be self-supporting to the greatest extent possible by user 
charges/fees. 
 
The General Manager shall implement financial planning and budgeting that: 
 

1. Includes reliable projections of revenues, expenses, cash flow, reserve funds, utility fund balances, and 
key financial indicators based on credible assumptions. 
 

2. Includes reliable projections of capital expenses and borrowing needs.  
 

3. Includes revenue requirements with proposed planned rate adjustments based on each utility cost of 
service/rate study.  

 
4. Recognizes the need for appropriate adjustments or contingencies to the financial plan and budget that 

may arise during implementation as a result of changed conditions and unexpected events.  
 

5. Clearly communications the financial plan and budget connection to the strategic plan. 
 

6. Provides quarterly financial reports to the Commission which accurately and adequately describe all 
utilities financial condition. 

 
7. Provides financial report presentations which discuss any material changes ($250,000 or greater than 5% 

greater of annual revenues for each utility enterprise) and any appropriate corrective actions.  
 

8. Allows the GM to reallocate a budgeted dollar amount among line items in the approved capital and 
operating budgets without prior approval by the Commission, if the amount is less than 5% of annual 
revenues for each utility enterprise.   
 

9. Follows all Minnesota State Statutes related to legal compliance, financial, and bond covenants. 
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